
C/CAG 
CITY/COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS OF SAN MATEO COUNTY 

 
Atherton  Belmont  Brisbane  Burlingame  Colma  Daly City  East Palo Alto  Foster City  Half Moon Bay  Hillsborough  Menlo Park  

 Millbrae  Pacifica  Portola Valley  Redwood City  San Bruno  San Carlos  San Mateo  San Mateo County  South San Francisco  Woodside 
 

AIRPORT LAND USE COMMITTEE (ALUC) 
Revised AGENDA 

REVISED Zoom login info 
 
 

 
Date:          Thursday, September 28, 2023 
 
Time:         4:30 p.m. 
 
Location:   Burlingame Community Center 

850 Burlingame Avenue 
Burlingame, CA 
 

 
Join by Zoom Webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81335481228?pwd=e
EQ2cmI4VzUrRHk0Nk4ybkZ4cWtDUT09 
 
Webinar ID: 813 3548 1228 
 
Passcode: 839437 
 
Join by Phone: (669) 900-6833 
 

 
 

***HYBRID MEETING - IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEOCONFERENCE*** 
 
This meeting of the Airport Land Use Committee will be held in person and by teleconference 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e). Members of the public will be able to participate 
in the meeting remotely via the Zoom platform or in person at the location above. For information 
regarding how to participate in the meeting, either in person or remotely, please refer to the 
instructions at the end of the agenda. 
 
 

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Action 
(O’Connell) 
 

  

2. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda Limited to 2 
minutes per 
speaker 
 

  

3. Approval of Minutes for the August 24, 2023 meeting. Action 
(O’Connell) 
 

 Page 1 

4. San Francisco International Airport Comprehensive 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency 
Review – Proposed 155-unit single family residential 
development, public open space and recreation facilities 
at 300 Piedmont Avenue, San Bruno. 

Action 
(Kalkin) 

 Page 5 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81335481228?pwd=eEQ2cmI4VzUrRHk0Nk4ybkZ4cWtDUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81335481228?pwd=eEQ2cmI4VzUrRHk0Nk4ybkZ4cWtDUT09


 

5. San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
Consistency Review – Proposed 6-story, 188 room hotel 
at 501 Industrial Road, San Carlos, including associated 
rezoning. 
 

Action 
(Kalkin) 

 Page 23 

6. San Francisco International Airport Comprehensive 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency 
Review – Comprehensive update of the Burlingame 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Action 
(Kalkin) 

 Page 41  

7. San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
Consistency Review – Draft San Carlos Zoning 
Ordinance Update. 
 

Action 
(Kalkin) 

 Page 60 

8. San Francisco International Airport Comprehensive 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency 
Review – Amendments to the Millbrae Station Area 
Specific Plan to allow for uses classified as 
“Biotechnology Level 2” within portions of the Transit 
Oriented Development Zone north of the paseo 
connecting the Millbrae transit station and Rollins Road, 
south of the BART parking garage, east of Millbrae 
transit station, and west of Rollins Road, which are 
located within Safety Compatibility Zone 2. 
 

Action 
(Kalkin) 

 Page 76 

9. Member Comments/Announcements 
 

Information   

10. Items from Staff  
 

 

Information 
 

  

11. Adjournment – Next regular meeting – Oct. 26, 2023    
 
NOTE: All items appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Committee.  

Actions recommended by staff are subject to change by the Committee.
 

 
If you have any questions regarding the C/CAG Airport Land Use Committee Meeting Agenda, 
please contact Susy Kalkin at kkalkin@smcgov.org . 
 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICING:  All notices of C/CAG regular Board meetings, standing committee meetings, and special 
meetings will be posted at the San Mateo County Courtyard, 555 County Center, Redwood City, CA, and on 
C/CAG’s website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov. 
  

mailto:kkalkin@smcgov.org
http://www.ccag.ca.gov/


 

  
 PUBLIC RECORDS:  Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular Board 

meeting, standing committee meeting, or special meeting are available for public inspection.  Those public records 
that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to a regular Board meeting are available for public inspection at the same 
time they are distributed to all members, or a majority of the members, of the Board. The Board has designated the 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG), located at 555 County Center, 5th Floor, 
Redwood City, CA 94063, for the purpose of making public records available for inspection.  Such public records 
are also available on C/CAG’s website at: http://www.ccag.ca.gov. Please note that C/CAG’s office is temporarily 
closed to the public; please contact Mima Guilles at (650) 599-1406 to arrange for inspection of public records.  
 
ADA Requests: Persons with disabilities who require auxiliary aids or services to participate in this meeting should 
contact Mima Guilles at (650) 599-1406, five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION DURING HYBRID MEETINGS: During hybrid meetings of the ALUC, members 
of the public may address the Committee as follows: 
 
Written comments should be emailed in advance of the meeting. Please read the following instructions carefully: 

 
1. Written comments should be emailed to kkalkin@smcgov.org  
2. The email should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting or note that your 

comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. 
3. If your emailed comments are received at least 2 hours prior to the meeting, they will be provided to the 

ALUC Committee members, made publicly available on the C/CAG website along with the agenda, but 
will not be read aloud by staff during the meeting. We cannot guarantee that comments received less than 2 
hours before the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members, but they will be included in the 
administrative record of the meeting. 

 
In Person Participation 
 

1. Persons wishing to speak should fill out a speaker’s slip provided in the meeting room.  If you have 
anything that you wish distributed to the Committee and included in the official record, please hand it to the 
C/CAG staff who will distribute the information to the Committee members. 

2. Public comment is limited to two minutes per speaker. 
 

 Remote Participation 
 
Oral comments will be accepted during the meeting through Zoom. Please read the following instructions carefully: 

 
1. The ALUC Committee meeting may be accessed through Zoom at the online location indicated at the top 

of this agenda. 
2. You may download the Zoom client or connect to the meeting using an internet browser. If using your 

browser, make sure you are using a current, up-to-date browser: Chrome 30+, Firefox 27+, Microsoft Edge 
12+, Safari 7+. Certain functionality may be disabled in older browsers including Internet Explorer. 

3. You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you identify yourself by your name 
as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you that it is your turn to speak. 

4. When the C/CAG staff member or ALUC Committee Chair call for the item on which you wish to speak, 
click on “raise hand.” The C/CAG staff member will activate and unmute speakers in turn. Speakers will be 
notified shortly before they are called on to speak. 

5. When called, please limit your remarks to the two-minute time limit. 
 

mailto:kkalkin@smcgov.org


 

Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) 
Meeting Minutes 
August 24, 2023 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

As neither the Chair nor Vice-Chair was in attendance, Member Hamilton called the meeting 
to order at 4:41 pm.  The attendance sheet is attached.    

2. Public Comment on items not on the Agenda – None 
 

3. Minutes of the May 25, 2023 meeting and acceptance of the meeting record for June 22, 
2023 
 
Motion: Member Sturken moved, and Member Nicolas seconded, approval of the May 25, 2023 
meeting and acceptance of the meeting record for June 22, 2023.  Motion carried (7-0-0) by 
the following voice vote: AYE – Members DiGiovanni, Sullivan, Cahalan, Sturken, Hamilton, 
Nicolas and Ford. NO – none. ABSTAIN – none. 
 

4. San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency Review – Proposed 5-
story, 103-unit apartment building at 608 Harbor Blvd., Belmont. 
 
Susy Kalkin, C/CAG staff, presented the staff report.    
 
Motion: Member Sturken moved, and Member Sullivan seconded, approval of the staff 
recommendation.  Motion carried (8-0-0) by the following voice vote: AYE – Members 
DiGiovanni, Sullivan, Cahalan, Sturken, Hamilton, Nicolas, Ford and Vice-Chair Ortiz. NO 
– none. ABSTAIN – none. 
 

5. San Carlos Airport and San Francisco International Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan Consistency Review – Belmont General Plan Housing Element 2023-2031. 
 
Susy Kalkin, C/CAG staff, presented the staff report.   
 
 Motion: Member Nicolas moved, and Member DiGiovanni seconded, approval of the staff 
recommendation.  Motion carried (8-0-0) by the following voice vote: AYE – Members 
DiGiovanni, Sullivan, Cahalan, Sturken, Hamilton, Nicolas, Ford and Vice-Chair Ortiz. NO 
– none.  ABSTAIN – none. 
 
 

6. San Francisco International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency Review 
– Proposed 10-story, 341-unit, multi-family residential development at 840 San Bruno 
Avenue, San Bruno. 

 
Susy Kalkin, C/CAG staff, presented the staff report. 
 

1



 

Vice-chair Ortiz noted that a letter had been submitted by SFO staff and asked that staff 
clarify their concerns.  Staff noted that the comment letter did not raise any significant 
concerns but did note that the project must submit Form 7460-1 to the FAA for a hazard 
determination and also that the project sponsor should be mindful of the requirements to 
avoid incompatible site design characteristics including reflective building materials and 
bright lights.     
 
Motion: Member DiGiovanni moved, and Member Sturken seconded, approval of the staff 
recommendation.  Motion carried (8-0-0) by the following voice vote: AYE – Members 
DiGiovanni, Sullivan, Cahalan, Sturken, Hamilton, Nicolas, Ford and Vice-Chair Ortiz. NO 
– none. ABSTAIN – none. 
 

7. San Francisco International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency Review 
– Draft Lindenville Specific Plan, South San Francisco. 
 
Susy Kalkin, C/CAG staff, presented the staff report.    
 
Motion: Vice-Chair Ortiz moved, and Member Sturken seconded, approval of the staff 
recommendation.  Motion carried (8-0-0) by the following voice vote: AYE – Members 
DiGiovanni, Sullivan, Cahalan, Sturken, Hamilton, Nicolas, Ford and Vice-Chair Ortiz. NO 
– none. ABSTAIN – none. 
 

8. Considerations for the update of Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCPs) – 
Discussion only. 
 
Susy Kalkin, C/CAG staff, presented the staff report, noting that staff does not recommend 
updating the ALUCPs at this time due to the factors noted in the staff report, including the 
pending update of the Caltrans Div. of Aeronautics California Airport Land Use Planning 
Handbook, the lack of reliable data due to the continued recovery of the travel sector post 
Covid-19, and the lack of a funding source.  She further noted that staff recommended 
pursuing a minor amendment to the San Carlos ALUCP focused on providing guidance on 
how to evaluate conditional childcare uses in safety zone 6, as no clear guidance currently 
exists.   
 
Member Cahalan asked whether the unclear language only pertains to the San Carlos 
ALUCP or whether it extends to all three ALUCP documents.  Staff noted that the language 
in the SFO ALUCP regarding childcare use was not ambiguous, but noted that staff would 
review the Half Moon Bay ALUCP and determine whether there was a similar issue. 
 
Member Cahalan questioned whether a focused update to the SFO ALUCP could be 
considered.  She noted that Millbrae had recently updated its General Plan and Station Area 
Specific Plan and had needed to adopt overrides as part of that effort.  She wondered if the 
ALUCP could be reviewed to address those areas of inconsistency.  Staff responded that this 
type of amendment would be a larger effort than the minor amendments we have undertaken, 
or are proposing, which have focused on addressing unclear policy language rather than 
developing new policies. 
 

2



 

Executive Director Charpentier further noted that since adoption of the ALUCPs there have 
been four overrides, two related to residential use in the noise impact area (South San 
Francisco and San Bruno), and two related to biosafety use in Safety Zone 2 (Millbrae), and 
that these situations involve instances where there are clearly defined policies in the ALUCP 
that are in line with the guidance provided in the Caltrans Handbook.  Conversely, the 
concern about conditional childcare use in the San Carlos ALUCP is the lack of appropriate 
guidance/evaluation criteria in the document. 
 
There was general agreement among Committee Members that update of the ALUCPs should 
wait until the update to the Caltrans Handbook is complete.  Additionally, it was 
recommended that staff begin to explore potential funding sources. 
 
Tiffany Martinez, Caltrans Airport Planner, introduced herself, noting she was recently 
assigned to the Bay Area region.  She commended the ALUC on its desire to keep the 
County’s ALUCPs up to date and noted that San Mateo County’s plans are among the most 
current in the state.  She provided some additional information regarding the Handbook 
update, including that there is no clear schedule at this point, though they are doing 
background research and stakeholder outreach, with the expectation that the update will kick-
off after the beginning of the year.  She also supported the Committee’s recommendation to 
wait for the Handbook update before beginning the ALUCP update process. 
 

9. Member Comments/Announcements 
 
None 
 

10. Items from Staff  
 
None 
 

11. Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:53 pm. 

3



Name Agency Jan Feb Apr May June August
In‐person AB2449

Terry O'Connell City of Brisbane X X X X X

Ricardo Ortiz City of Burlingame X X Xarrived 4:50

Pamela 
DiGiovanni

City of Daly City X X X X X

Patrick Sullivan City of Foster City X arrived 5:00 X X X X X X

Robert 
Brownstone

City of Half Moon Bay

Angelina 
Cahalan

City of Millbrae X X X X X X X

Christopher 
Sturken

City of Redwood City X X X X X X

Tom Hamilton City of San Bruno X X X Y arrived 4:50 X X X

Adam Rak/ 
Pranita 
Venkatesh1

City of San Carlos X arrived 5:10 X X

Warren Slocum
County of San Mateo 
& Aviation Rep.

Flor Nicolas
City of South San 
Francisco

X X X X2 X

Carol Ford Aviation Rep. X X X X X

Chistopher 
Yakabe

Half Moon Bay Pilots 
Assn. Y arrived 4:45 X Y Y X X

No quorum

Staff and guests in attendance for the August 24, 2023, meeting:  Susy Kalkin and Sean Charpentier, C/CAG staff; Carlos de Melo and Diana Elrod, Belmont 
staff; Matt Neuebaumer, San Bruno staff; Billy Gross, South San Francisco staff; Tiffany Martinez, Caltrans Div. of Aeronautics

2023 C/CAG Airport Land Use Committee Attendance Report

Mar

1 Pranita Venkatesh appointed 2/27/2023

X ‐ Committee Member Attended
Y ‐ Designated Alternate Attended

2 Member Nicolas attended remotely but, due to a lack of a quorum at the meeting site, did not invoke AB2449

4



      
 
C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 

 
Date: September 28, 2023 
 
To: Airport Land Use Committee 
 
From: Susy Kalkin 
 
Subject: San Francisco International Airport Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility 

Plan Consistency Review – Proposed 155-unit single family residential development, 
public open space and recreation facilities at 300 Piedmont Avenue, San Bruno. 

 
(For further information or response to questions, contact Susy Kalkin – kkalkin@smcgov.org) 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
That the C/CAG Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) recommend to the C/CAG Board of 
Directors, that the C/CAG Board, acting as the Airport Land Use Commission, determine that the 
proposed project, comprised of a 155-unit single family residential development, public open space 
and recreation facilities at 300 Piedmont Avenue, San Bruno, is consistent with the applicable 
airport/land use policies and criteria contained in the Comprehensive Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport (SFO ALUCP), subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
 Prior to issuance of a building permit, the project sponsor shall file Form 7460-1 with the 

FAA and provide to the City of San Bruno an FAA “Determination of No Hazard”. 
 
 The City of San Bruno shall require that lighting for the proposed multi-use soccer field be 

downward-facing and designed to minimize visual hazards to pilots. 
 
 The City of San Bruno shall require that the project sponsor comply with the real estate 

disclosure requirements outlined in Policy IP-1 of the SFO ALUCP, which apply to sale or 
lease of property located within the AIA. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The proposed project (“Project”) consists of demolishing the former Crestmoor High School 
facilities and constructing a 155-lot single family subdivision on approximately 12.3 acres of the 
40.2-acre site.  The Project also includes approximately 18 acres of publicly accessible open space, 
including a 6-acre portion that would be developed as a multi-use soccer field with permanent 
lighting.   
 
The Project is located within Airport Influence Area B (AIA B), the “Project Referral” area, for San 
Francisco International Airport.  California Public Utilities Code (PUC) Section 21676(b) requires 
that a local agency General Plan, Zoning Ordinance and/or any affected specific plan must be 
consistent with the applicable airport/land use criteria in the relevant adopted Airport Land Use 

Item 4 

5

mailto:kkalkin@smcgov.org


C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – 300 Piedmont Ave., San Bruno 
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 2  
 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP).   Additionally, PUC Section 21676.5(a), requires that until a local 
agency has brought its land use plans into compliance with the ALUCP, that it submit all proposed 
development and land use policy actions that affect property within AIA B to the ALUC for a 
consistency determination.  In accordance with these requirements, San Bruno has referred the 
subject development project to C/CAG, acting as the San Mateo County Airport Land Use 
Commission, for a determination of consistency with the SFO ALUCP.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
ALUCP Consistency Evaluation 
 
The SFO ALUCP contains policies and criteria to address four issues: (a) aircraft noise; (b) safety; 
(c) airspace protection; and (d) overflight notification. The following sections describe the degree to 
which the Project is compatible with each. 
 
(a) Aircraft Noise  

 
The 65 dB CNEL (Community Noise Equivalent Level) aircraft noise contour defines the threshold 
for airport noise impacts established in the SFO ALUCP.  All land uses located outside this contour 
are deemed consistent with the noise policies of the SFO ALUCP. 
 
As shown on Attachment 2, the subject property lies outside the bounds of the 65dB CNEL contour, 
and therefore the Project is consistent with the SFO ALUCP noise policies and criteria. 
 
(b) Safety  
 
The SFO ALUCP includes five safety zones and related land use compatibility policies and criteria.  
As shown on Attachment 3, the Project site is located outside of the safety zones established in the 
SFO ALUCP, and therefore the safety policies and criteria do not apply to the Project.  
 
(c) Airspace Protection 

 
Structure Heights   

 
In order to be deemed consistent with the ALUCP, the maximum height of a new building must be 
the lower of (1) the height shown on the critical aeronautical surfaces map; or (2) the maximum 
height determined not to be a “hazard to air navigation” by the FAA in an aeronautical study 
prepared pursuant to the filing of Form 7460-1. 
 
As proposed, the new homes would be approximately 27 feet tall, and the light standards proposed 
for the athletic fields would be approximately 80 feet tall.  The ground elevation at the site is 
approximately 433 feet above mean sea level (AMSL), so maximum Project heights would be 
approximately 513 feet AMSL.  As indicated on Attachment 4, the critical airspace above the site 
lies at approximately 860 feet AMSL, so the Project would be more than 300 feet below this surface.     
However, as shown on Attachment 5, the Project is located in an area that requires FAA notification 

6



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – 300 Piedmont Ave., San Bruno 
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 3  
 
for all new construction (structures under 35 feet tall).  The application materials recognize the 
requirement that the project submit Form 7460-1 for an FAA hazard determination, but it is included 
as a condition to ensure compliance:   

 Prior to issuance of a building permit, the project sponsor shall file Form 7460-1 with the 
FAA and provide to the City of San Bruno an FAA “Determination of No Hazard”. 

Other Flight Hazards 
 
Within AIA B, certain land use characteristics are recognized as hazards to air navigation and, per 
Airspace Protection Policy AP-4, need to be evaluated to ensure compatibility with FAA rules and 
regulations.   As noted in the comment letter provided by SFO Planning staff, Attachment 6, the 
Project includes a multi-use soccer field that would include permanent lighting.  Further, they note 
that the site is subject to overflights by arriving and departing aircraft and caution that bright lights 
can be a visual hazard to pilots.  Accordingly, the following condition is proposed: 
 
 The City of San Bruno shall require that lighting for the proposed multi-use soccer field be 

downward-facing and designed to minimize visual hazards to pilots. 
 
(d) Overflight Notification  
 
The Project site is located within the Airport Influence Area (AIA) of SFO, the real estate disclosure 
area.  Pursuant to Policy IP-1, notification is required, prior to sale or lease of property located 
within the AIA, of the proximity of the airport and that therefore the property may be subject to 
some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations. 
 
As this disclosure requirement is not currently included in San Bruno’s Municipal Code, the 
following condition is proposed:  
 
 The City of San Bruno shall require that the project sponsor comply with the real estate 

disclosure requirements outlined in Policy IP-1 of the SFO ALUCP, which apply to sale or 
lease of property located within the AIA. 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. ALUCP application, together with related project description and plan set excerpts 
2. SFO ALUCP Exh. IV-6 – Noise Compatibility Zones 
3. SFO ALUCP Exh. IV-2 –AIA B w/Safety Compatibility Zones  
4. SFO ALUCP Exh. IV-17 – Critical Aeronautical Surfaces - NW  
5. SFO ALUCP Exh. IV-12 – FAA Notification Filing Reqs.- South Side 
6. Comment Letter from SFO Planning dated Aug. 10, 2023 

7



APPLICATION FOR LAND USE CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION 
San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission 

C/CAG ALUC 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Agency: 

Project Name: 

Address: APN:

City: State: ZIP Code:

Staff Contact: Phone: Email: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

REQUIRED PROJECT INFORMATION  

For General Plan, Specific Plan or Zoning Amendments and Development Projects: 

A copy of the relevant amended sections, maps, etc., together with a detailed description of the proposed 
changes, sufficient to provide the following: 

Adequate information to establish the relationship of the project to the three areas of Airport Land Use
compatibility concern (ex. a summary of the planning documents and/or project development materials
describing how ALUCP compatibility issues are addressed):

Noise: Location of project/plan area in relation to the noise contours identified in the applicable ALUCP.

Safety: Location of project/plan area in relation to the safety zones identified in the applicable ALUCP.

Airspace Protection:

 City of San Bruno
Crestmoor

San Bruno CA 94066
msmith@sanbruno.ca.gov650-616-7062Michael Smith

019-170-020300 Piedmont Avenue

Attachment 1

8



C/CAG ALUC 12/18 

Real Estate Disclosure requirements related to airport proximity

Any related environmental documentation (electronic copy preferred)

Other documentation as may be required (ex. related staff reports, etc.)

Additional information For Development Projects: 

Latitude and longitude of development site
Building heights relative to mean sea level (MSL)

ALUCP Plans can be accessed at http://ccag.ca.gov/plansreportslibrary/airport-land-use/ 

Please contact C/CAG staff at 650 599-1467 with any questions. 

For C/CAG Staff Use Only 
Date Application Received 
Date Application Deemed 
Complete 
Tentative Hearing Dates:   

- Airport Land Use
Committee

- C/CAG ALUC

9



300 PIEDMONT AVENUE FEBRUARY 3, 2023 TITLE SHEET T1

JOINT TRENCH:

GIACALONE DESIGN SERVICES, INC.
5820 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD, SUITE 345
PLEASANTON, CA 94588
P: 925.467.1740
PAUL GIACALONE
paulg@dryutilitydesign.com

ARCHITECT:

KTGY ARCHITECTURE
1814 FRANKLIN STREET, SUITE 400
OAKLAND, CA 94612
JILL WILLIAMS
jwilliams@ktgy.com

300 PIEDMONT AVENUE PROJECT SUBMITTAL
SAN BRUNO, CALIFORNIA

APPLICANT:

SUMMERHILL HOMES
777 S. CALIFORNIA AVENUE
PALO ALTO, CA 94304
P: 925.244.7513
SAM ROSEN
srosen@shhomes.com

CIVIL ENGINEER:

CBG CIVIL ENGINEERS
2633 CAMINO RAMON, SUITE 350
SAN RAMON, CA 94583
RYAN HANSEN
rhansen@cbandg.com

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:

VAN DORN ABED, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, INC.
81 14TH STREET
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103
ZEKI ABED
zeki@vlainc.com

PROJECT SUBMITTAL

10



NOVEMBER 4, 2022

PROJECT SUBMITTAL

FEBRUARY 3, 2023

11



PROJECT SUBMITTAL

FEBRUARY 3, 2023

12



COVER SHEET
N1 PERSPECTIVE VIEW A0.0.1

"Artists' conception.  Please refer to plans for project specifications."

NOVEMBER 4, 2022

PROJECT SUBMITTAL

FEBRUARY 3, 2023

13



0 15’ 30’ 60’ NORTH

VV

JUNE 21, 2023

C R E S T M O O R  F I E L D S  M A S T E R  P L A N
D R A F T  M A S T E R  P L A N

Restroom and Concession

Seat Wall Biotreatment Area

Parking lot

Parking Area Parking Area

Entry stairs

Project limits

Bioretention 
area

concession 

maintenance 

Goal storage

tables

Accessible 

COURTLAND DRIVE

PROPOSED 
RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT

Fitness area 
seating

Parking area

Picnic Area

14



Colma
Brisbane

Daly City

South San Francisco

San Bruno

Pacifica

Millbrae

Burlingame

Attachment 2

15



od City

1
L 1
R

1

1
1
9

1
9

L

2
8

2
8

San Francisco O

Broadmoor Brisbane
San Bruno MttSttatte & Cntty Park

Daly City

Colma

San Francisco
Bay

South San Francisco

San Bruno
San Francisco

International Airport

Pacifica
Gollden Gatte NattiionallRec Area

Millbrae Burlingame

San Pedro Vallley Countty Park

McNee Ranch Sttatte Park

Montara Hillsborough San Mateo 
Foster City

Redwo
Moss Beach Highlands-Baywood  Park

akland

Attachment 3

16



SSoouutthh SSaann FFrraanncciissccoo

SSaann FFrraanncciissccoo

BBrrooaaddmmoooorr BBrriissbbaannee

SSS aaannn BBB rrr uuunnn ooo MMM ttt SSS ttt aaa ttteee &&& CCCnnn ttt yyy PPP aaarrr kkk

DDaallyy CCiittyy
CCoollmmaa

SSaann BBrruunnoo

PPaacciiffiiccaa
GGGooo llddd eeennn GGG aaattt eee NNN aaattt iiooonnn aaa ll RRR eee ccc AAA rrr eeeaaa

SSSaaa nnn AAAnnn ddd rrr eee aaa sss LLL aaa kkk eee MMiillllbbrraaee BBuurrlliinnggaammee

SSS aaannn PPP eeeddd rrr ooo VVV aaa lllleeeyyy CCC ooo uuunnn tttyyy PPP aaarrr kkk SSaann MMaatteeoo
MMM ccc NNN eeeeee RRR aaa nnnccc hhh SSS ttt aaattt eee PPP aaa rrr kkk

HHiillllssbboorroouugghh FFoosstteerr CCiittyyMMoonnttaarraa

Attachment 4

17



CCoollmmaa BBrriissbbaannee

DDaallyy CCiittyy

SSoouutthh SSaann FFrraanncciissccoo

SSaann FFrraanncciissccoo
BBaayy

SSaann BBrruunnoo

SSaann FFrraanncciissccoo
IInntteerrnnaattiioonnaall AAiirrppoorrtt

PPaacciiffiiccaa

SSSaaa nnn AAAnnn ddd rrr eee aaa sss LLL aaa kkk eee
MMiillllbbrraaee

BBuurrlliinnggaammee

Attachment 5

18



August 10, 2023 

Susy Kalkin TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL ONLY 
ALUC Staff kkalkin@smcgov.org 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
555 County Center, 5th Floor 
Redwood City, California 94063 

Subject: Land Use Consistency Determination for 300 Piedmont Avenue, City of San Bruno 

Thank you for notifying the San Francisco International Airport (SFO or the Airport) of an Application for 
Land Use Consistency Determination for the 300 Piedmont Avenue Project (Proposed Project) and the 
Airport Land Use Commission’s (ALUC) pending land use consistency determination for the Proposed 
Project. We appreciate this opportunity to provide comments. 

According to the application materials, the Proposed Project is located at 300 Piedmont Avenue (Assessor’s 
Parcel Number 019-170-020) on an approximately 40-acre site. Existing single-family subdivisions are to the 
north, west, and south, and a wooded hillside and Interstate 280 are to the east. The site is developed with 
buildings and facilities associated with the former Crestmoor High School, which closed in 1980. 

The Proposed Project consists of demolishing the existing structures and establishing a new 155-lot single-
family detached home community with associated open space and infrastructure. The Proposed Project 
would include approximately 18 acres of publicly accessible open space. A 6-acre portion of the open space 
would be developed as a multi-use soccer field with permanent lighting. 

The Proposed Project site is within two Airport Influence Areas (AIAs): Area A – Real Estate Disclosure 
Area (all of San Mateo County) and Area B – Policy/Project Referral Area (a smaller subarea in the northern 
part of San Mateo County), as defined by the Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the 
Environs of San Francisco International Airport (SFO ALUCP). Within Area A, the real estate disclosure 
requirements of state law apply (see attachment). A property owner offering a property for sale or lease must 
disclose the presence of planned or existing airports within two miles of the property. Within Area B, the 
Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County, acting as the 
designated Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC), shall review proposed land use policy actions, including 
new general plans, specific plans, zoning ordinances, plan amendments and rezonings, and land development 
proposals (see attachment). The real estate disclosure requirements in Area A also apply in Area B. 

The Proposed Project site would be located outside of the 65 decibel Community Noise Equivalent Level 
(dB CNEL) contour and all Safety Compatibility Zones, and therefore would not appear to be inconsistent 
with the Noise and Safety Compatibility Policies adopted in the SFO ALUCP. 

As described in Exhibit IV-17 of the SFO ALUCP (see attachment), the critical aeronautical surfaces at the 
Proposed Project location are at an elevation of approximately 860 feet above mean sea level (AMSL) as 
defined from the origin of the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88). The elevation of the 
Proposed Project site is approximately 433 feet AMSL. The maximum height of the single-family residences 
would be 27 feet above ground level (AGL), and maximum height of the light standards at the soccer field 
would be 80 feet AGL. Both of these heights would be below the height of the lowest critical aeronautical 
surfaces (427 feet AGL). Therefore, the Proposed Project would not appear to be inconsistent with the 

Attachment 6

19



Susy Kalkin, ALUC 
August 10, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Airspace Compatibility Policies of the SFO ALUCP, subject to the issuance of a Determination of No 
Hazard from the Federal Aviation Administration (see below) for any proposed structures, and 
determinations from the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County as the designated 
Airport Land Use Commission. 
 
This evaluation does not waive the requirement for the Proposed Project sponsor to undergo Federal Aviation 
Administration airspace review as described in 14 Code of Federal Regulations Part 77 for both (1) the 
permanent structures and (2) any equipment taller than the permanent structures required to construct those 
structures. 
 
As discussed above, the Proposed Project includes a multi-use soccer field that would include permanent 
lighting. The Proposed Project site is subject to overflights by arriving and departing aircraft. Bright lights 
can be a visual hazard to pilots. Lighting for the proposed multi-use soccer field should be downward-facing 
to minimize visual hazards to pilots that would be incompatible with the SFO ALUCP (see Airspace 
Protection Policy AP-4 of the attachment). 
 
The Airport appreciates that the City of San Bruno (City) intends to add new housing stock within its limits 
and outside of the 70 dB CNEL noise contour. The General Plan designation for the site is Low Density 
Residential, which allows a maximum density of eight units per acre. Given the size of the site 
(approximately 40 acres), it would be possible under existing zoning regulations to develop much denser 
housing at this site (up to 320 units), providing twice as many units as currently proposed. Developing only 
155 units (3.9 units per acre) on this site represents a missed opportunity to provide housing in a location that 
is consistent with federal and State land use compatibility statutes to safeguard public health and safety, 
which is reflected in the Noise Compatibility Policies adopted in the SFO ALUCP. 
 
Increasing the residential density on this site would reduce the City’s Regional Housing Needs Assessment 
(RHNA) obligations at other sites and would alleviate development pressures at incompatible sites like the 
Tanforan Mall, where there would be significant environmental impacts under the California Environmental 
Quality Act and environmental justice issues if the City proceeds with adding housing.  
 
In previous conversations with the City regarding Tanforan Mall, City staff shared that their community is 
entirely developed and that Tanforan Mall represents the only site large enough to accommodate a substantial 
proportion of the City’s RHNA obligations. Tanforan Mall is only four acres larger than this Proposed 
Project site, and the portion of Tanforan which would be dedicated to housing is about eight acres compared 
to 22 acres at the Proposed Project site. Using even half of the assumed density for the incompatible 
Tanforan Mall site would yield nearly 1,400 housing units. The attached overlay figure of the Tanforan Mall 
plan atop the Proposed Project site demonstrates the site’s scale and ability to accommodate substantially 
more housing development. 
 
The Airport strongly urges the City to consider this and other compatible sites for maximum density, 
including via upzoning, before exploring the introduction of housing into incompatible sites. 
 

* * * 
 

20



Susy Kalkin, ALUC 
August 10, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
The Airport appreciates your consideration of these comments for inclusion in the ALUC’s Land Use 
Consistency Determination for the Proposed Project. If I can be of assistance, please do not hesitate to 
contact me at (650) 821-6678 or at nupur.sinha@flysfo.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Nupur Sinha 
Director of Planning and Environmental Affairs 
San Francisco International Airport 
 
Attachments 

SFO ALUCP Airport Influence Areas and Airspace Protection Policies 
Overlay of Tanforan Preliminary Project Application at 300 Piedmont Avenue 

 
cc: Sean Charpentier, C/CAG 

Audrey Park, SFO 
 Chris DiPrima, SFO 
  Alex D. McIntyre, City of San Bruno 
  Darcy Smith, City of San Bruno 
  Matt Neuebaumer, City of San Bruno 
  Matt Maloney, ABAG 
  Mark Shorett, ABAG 
  Sam Hindi, City of Foster City 
  Kathleen Wentworth, City of San Mateo 
   
 

21



\\commission\data\Department\Planning\2000 Regional Planning\2100 Local Agencies\2117 San Bruno\2117.22 300 Piedmont Avenue\ALUC\Comment Letter\300 Piedmont overlay with Tanforan.mxd 8/7/2023 10:35:48 AM Christopher.DiPrima

San Mateo Union
High Sch Dist
019-170-020

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

FIGURE 1
Overlay Map

Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
San Francisco International Airport

OVERLAY OF TANFORAN PRELIMINARY PROJECT APPLICATION AT 300 PIEDMONT AVENUE

SOURCES: Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors; Tanforan Preliminary Project Application, 2022; Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of SFO (ALUCP), 2012; SFO Bureau of Planning and Environmental Affairs, August 2023.

NOTES: Elevations are in feet above the 0' origin of the North American Vertical Datum of 1988 (NAVD88). For purposes of the ALUCP, this has the same definition as feet above mean sea level (AMSL).
Figure excludes all 14 CFR Part 77 ("Part 77") surfaces. 
Figure is provided for informational purposes only and does not replace Federal Aviation Administration or ALUCP approval processes and documentation. Do not reproduce without permission.

AREA OF DETAIL

LEGEND

APN 019-170-020

0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet

22



 
 

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: September 28, 2023 
 
To: Airport Land Use Committee 
 
From: Susy Kalkin 
 
Subject: San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency Review – Proposed 6-

story, 188 room hotel at 501 Industrial Road, San Carlos, including associated rezoning. 
 
 (For further information or response to questions, contact Susy Kalkin at kkalkin@smcgov.org) 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) recommend to the C/CAG Board of Directors, that the 
C/CAG Board, acting as the Airport Land Use Commission, determine that the proposed 6-story, 188 
room hotel, at 501 Industrial Road, San Carlos, including related rezoning, is consistent with the 
applicable airport/land use policies and criteria contained in the Comprehensive Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Carlos Airport (San Carlos ALUCP), subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

 The City of San Carlos shall require that the project sponsor comply with the real estate 
disclosure requirements outlined in Overflight Policy 1 of the San Carlos ALUCP. 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of San Carlos is processing an application for development of a 2.09-acre site located at 501 
Industrial Road, bounded by Holly St. and US-101.   The proposal includes construction of a 188-room 
hotel comprised of a 6-story structure with an adjoining 3-story wing.  The project also includes a 
request to rezone the property from Landmark Commercial (LC) to Planned Development (PD) to 
allow flexibility in some development standards, including building height.  
 
The project falls within Airport Influence Area (AIA) B, the Project Referral Area for San Carlos 
Airport and is subject to ALUC review pursuant to California Public Utilities Code (PUC) Sections 
21676(b) and 21676.5(a).   Accordingly, San Carlos has referred the subject project for a determination 
of consistency with the San Carlos ALUCP.   
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
I.         ALUCP Consistency Evaluation 
 
Four sets of airport/land use compatibility policies in the San Carlos ALUCP relate to the proposed 
project: (a) noise compatibility policies and criteria, (b) safety policies and criteria, (c) airspace 
protection policies and (d) overflight compatibility.  The following sections address each issue. 
 

Item 5 

23

mailto:kkalkin@smcgov.org


C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – 501 Industrial Rd., San Carlos 
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 2  
 
(a) Noise Policy Consistency  
 
The 60 dB CNEL (Community Noise Equivalent Level) aircraft noise contour defines the threshold for 
airport noise impacts established in the San Carlos ALUCP.  All land uses located outside this contour 
are deemed consistent with the noise policies of the ALUCP.   
 
As shown on San Carlos ALUCP Exhibit 4-2, Attachment 2, the subject property lies within the 
bounds of the 60 dB CNEL contour.  In accordance with San Carlos ALUCP Table 4-3, Noise 
Compatibility Criteria, hotels are compatible within this noise contour without restriction. 
  
(b) Safety Policy Consistency  
 
Runway Safety Zones - The San Carlos ALUCP includes six sets of safety zones and related land use 
compatibility policies and criteria.  As shown on San Carlos ALUCP Exhibit 4-3, Attachment 3, the 
project site is located within Safety Zone 6.  Per San Carlos ALUCP Table 4-4, Safety Compatibility 
Criteria, hotel use is listed as compatible in this safety zone. 
  
(c) Airspace Protection Policy Consistency  
 
Structures Heights 
 
In order to be deemed consistent with the ALUCP, the maximum height of a new building must be the 
lower or (1) the height of the controlling airspace protection surface shown on Exhibit 4-4, or 2) the 
maximum height determined to not be a “hazard to air navigation” by the FAA in an aeronautical study 
prepared pursuant to the filing of Form 7460-1. 
 
As proposed, the proposed project would have a maximum height of 82 ft.  With a ground elevation of 
approximately 13 feet above mean sea level (AMSL), the overall height of the project would be 95 feet 
AMSL.  Per San Carlos Exhibit 4-4, Attachment 4, the airspace protection surface above the project 
site lies at 155’ AMSL, so the proposed project would be below this surface.  Additionally, the project 
sponsor has received a “Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation” from the FAA for the project, 
included as Attachment 5.  Accordingly, the project is determined to be consistent with the Airspace 
Protection Policy 5. 
 
Other Flight Hazards  
 
Within AIA B, certain land use characteristics are recognized as hazards to air navigation and, per 
Airspace Protection Policy 6, need to be evaluated to ensure compatibility with FAA rules and 
regulations.  These characteristics include the following: 
 

• Sources of glare, such as highly reflective buildings, building features, or blight lights including 
search lights, or laser displays, which would interfere with the vision of pilots in command of an 
aircraft in flight; 

 
• Distracting lights that could be mistaken for airport identification lightings, runway edge 

lighting, runway end identification lighting, or runway approach lighting; 

24



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – 501 Industrial Rd., San Carlos 
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 3  
 
 

• Sources of dust, smoke, water vapor, or steam that may impair the visibility of a pilot in 
command of and aircraft in flight; 

 
• Sources of electrical/electronic interference with aircraft communications/navigation equipment; 

or 
 

• Any use that creates an increased attraction for wildlife, particularly large flocks of birds, that is 
inconsistent with FAA rules and regulations, including but not limited to FAA Order 5200.5A, 
Waste Disposal Site On or Near Airports and FAA Advisory Circular 150/5200-33B, Hazardous 
Wildlife Attractants On or Near Airports and any successor or replacement orders or advisory 
circulars.  

 
The proposed project does not include any features that would present unusual hazards to air navigation 
and therefore is determined to be compatible with Airspace Protection Policy 6. 
 
 
(d) Overflight Compatibility Consistency 
 
The Project Area is located within both the Airport Influence Area (AIA) A & B boundaries for San 
Carlos Airport.  Within an AIA, the real estate disclosure requirements of state law apply.  The law 
requires a statement to be included in the property transfer documents that (1) indicates the subject 
property is located within an airport influence area (AIA) boundary and (2) that the property may be 
subject to certain impacts from airport/aircraft operations.   

 
As this disclosure requirement is not included in the application materials, the following condition is 
proposed:  

 
 The City of San Carlos shall require that the project sponsor comply with the real estate 

disclosure requirements outlined in Airport Influence Area Policy 1of the San Carlos 
ALUCP. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. ALUCP application, together with related project description and exhibits. 
2. San Carlos ALUCP Exh. 4-2 – Future Conditions (2035) Aircraft Noise Contours 
3. San Carlos ALUCP Exh. 4-3 – Safety Zones. 
4. San Carlos ALUCP Exh. 4-4 – Airspace Protection Surfaces 
5. FAA Determination of No Hazard 
 

25



APPLICATION FOR LAND USE CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION 
San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission  

C/CAG ALUC  

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Agency: City of San Carlos

Project Name: 501 INDUSTRIAL ROAD, HOTEL INDIGO

Address: 501 INDUSTRIAL ROAD APN: 046-090-410

City: SAN CARLOS State: CA ZIP Code: 94070

Staff Contact: Christopher Dacumos, Senior 
Planner     

Phone: 707-655-0370 Email: cdacumos@goodcityco.com

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The project proposes construction of a new 188 room hotel at 501 Industrial Road at the eastern corner of Industrial Road and 
Holly street in San Carlos. It includes construction of a total of 118,884 square feet of commercial use (Hotel) in one building 
consisting of one six story section (74’-4.5” to the parapet and 81’-8.5” to the top of an architectural tower feature) and 
another three story connection (48’ – 10.875” to the parapet). The project proposes 148 at grade parking spaces. The project 
proposed a rezoning from Landmark Commercial (LC) to Planned Development (PD) to allow building height (81’-8.5” to top of 
its architectural tower), distance of parking stalls to building face, parking reduction of 22%, distance of short-term bicycle 
parking from building entrance, location of parking relative to the street facing property line, and total allowable signage of 260 
square feet. The site is 91,065 square feet and is currently vacant.
REQUIRED PROJECT INFORMATION  PLEASE SEE ENCLOSED SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AND ATTACHMENTS

For General Plan, Specific Plan or Zoning Amendments and Development Projects:  

A copy of the relevant amended sections, maps, etc., together with a detailed description of the proposed 
changes, sufficient to provide the following:  

1. Adequate information to establish the relationship of the project to the three areas of Airport Land Use
compatibility concern (ex. a summary of the planning documents and/or project development materials
describing how ALUCP compatibility issues are addressed):

a) Noise: Location of project/plan area in relation to the noise contours identified in the applicable ALUCP.

- Identify any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance 
with ALUCP noise policies. 

b) Safety: Location of project/plan area in relation to the safety zones identified in the applicable ALUCP.

- Include any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 
ALUCP safety policies. 

c) Airspace Protection:

- Include relevant citations/discussion of allowable heights in relation to the protected 
airspace/proximity to airport, as well as addressment of any land uses or design features that may cause 
visual, electronic, navigational, or wildlife hazards, particularly bird strike hazards.     

Attachment 1

26



- If applicable, identify how property owners are advised of the need to submit Form 7460-1, 
Notice of Proposed /Construction or Alteration with the FAA. 

2. Real Estate Disclosure requirements related to airport proximity

3. Any related environmental documentation (electronic copy preferred)

4. Other documentation as may be required (ex. related staff reports, etc.)

Additional information For Development Projects:  

1. 25 sets of scaled plans, no larger than 11” x 17”

2. Latitude and longitude of development site

3. Building heights relative to mean sea level (MSL)

ALUCP Plans can be accessed at http://ccag.ca.gov/plansreportslibrary/airport-land-use/ 

Please contact C/CAG staff at 650 599-1467 with any questions.  

C/CAG Application for Land Use Consistency Determination: 

27



C/CAG Application for Land Use Consistency Determination: Supplemental Information

Agency Name: City of San Carlos
Project Name: 841 Old County Road Life Science Development

PRPOPERTY AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

An application was submitted to the City of San Carlos for a hotel project at 501 Industrial Road. The 
subject site is a 2.09-acre lot bound by Holly Street, Industrial Road and US-101. Residential uses and 
two service stations are located to the west of the site across from Industrial Road, commercial 
properties to the north, US-101 bounds the property to the east, and commercial uses including a hotel 
directly adjacent to the site are to the south.

The proposed project includes construction of a total of 118,884 square feet of hotel use in one building 
consisting of one six story section (74’-4.5” to the parapet and 81’-8.5” to the top of an architectural 
tower feature) and another three-story connection (48’ – 10.875” to the parapet). The project proposed 
involves a rezoning from Landmark Commercial (LC) to Planned Development (PD) to allow building 
height (81’-8.5” to top of its architectural tower), distance of parking stalls to building face, parking 
reduction of 22%, distance of short-term bicycle parking from building entrance, location of parking 
relative to the street facing property line, and total allowable signage of 260 square feet. The site is 
currently vacant.

The site is located within the 60dB noise contour. Additionally, the site is within safety zone 6 of the 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the San Carlos Airport.

The proposed project would require approval of rezoning the site to Planned Development, a Planned 
Development Permit, Design Review, Transportation Demand Management Plan, Development 
Agreement, Grading/Dirt Haul Certification, and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) clearance. 
An Environmental Impact Report is being prepared by the City.

See enclosed Attachment for project site plan, rendering and elevations.

As discussed below, the project is consistent with the noise, safety and airspace protection policies of 
the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for the San Carlos Airport. 

The project is located in the Landmark Commercial and complies with the underlying zoning regulations 
with the exception of height, signage, location of parking stalls and short-term biking from building 
entrance or street facing property line and as such, requests a zoning map amendment to designate 
Planned Development to allow such changes.

28



DISCUSSION OF RELATIONSHIP TO AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY

Noise
The 501 Industrial Road – Hotel Indigo project site is located inside of the airport’s 60dB CNEL noise 
contour, but outside of the 65db CNEL noise contour (ALUCP Exhibit 4-2 “Future Conditions (2035) 
Aircraft Noise Contours map). The proposed hotel land use and related structures are considered 
compatible if outside of the 65 dB CNEL noise contour and is consistent with Noise Policy 1 and Noise 
Policy 4.

Existing Noise Levels
The project is currently vacant. The primary noise surface in the vicinity is from overhead aircraft, 
surface transportation (primarily from US-101) and industrial uses (City of San Carlos General Plan 
2009). Existing Noise level will not be problematic in this proposed hotel project.

Safety
The California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook requires ALUCPs to include safety zones for each 
runway end. The San Carlos Airport ALUCP includes six safety zones and related land use compatibility 
criteria. The proposed project site is located inside Safety Zone 6 which allows max residential densities 
(no limit), max nonresidential intensities (no limit) and max single acre (no limit) (Safety Compatibility 
Criteria for San Carlos Airport are listed on Table 4-4 of the San Carlos ALUCP). Safety Zone 6 does not 
have limits or restrictions for medical/biological research facilities handling highly toxic or infectious 
agents. 

Airspace Protection

The prosed building heights to the top of the architectural tower is 94’-8.5” MSL and is less than the 
155’ maximum allowable height set by the Airport Land Use Commission for the San Carlos Airport. The 
building roof heights are proposed at 87’-4.5” MSL. Reviewing Table 4-4 Safety Compatibility Criteria, 
Zone 6 the project will not create height hazard obstruction, smoke, glare, electronic, wildlife 
attractants, or other airspace hazards. Therefore, the proposed project would be consistent with the 
airspace policies as established in the adopted 2016 San Carlos ALUCP.

Attachments:
501 Industrial Road – Hotel Indigo Project Plan Sheets: 

o Site Plan
o Rendering
o Elevations

29



101

101

HOLLY HOTEL GROUP, LLC HOTEL INDIGO SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 10-09-2020 19103

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG RREESSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL 0088--0066--22002211
PPLLAANNNNIINNGG RREESSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL 22 1111--3300--22002211

FFIIRREE DDEEPPTT.. AAMMMMRR SSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL 0011--2200--22002222

CCEEQQAA//PPWW  CCOOMMMMEENNTT RREESSPPOONNSSEE 0055--0011--22002233
FFAAAA SSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL 0044--2266--22002233

T1TITLE

SITE ANALYSIS  

PROJECT DIRECTORY 

VICINITY MAP

DRAWING INDEX 
TITLE

T1 TITLE
T2 CODE ANALYSIS
T3 VEHICLE & PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION DIAGRAM

ARCHITECTURE
A1 SITE PLAN

A1.1 FIRE ACCESS PLAN
A2 FIRST FLOOR PLAN
A3 SECOND FLOOR PLAN
A4 THIRD FLOOR PLAN
A5 TYPICAL UPPER FLOOR PLAN
A6 ROOF PLAN
A7 LOT COVERAGE DIAGRAM
A8 AREA PLANS
A9 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS & SIGNAGE

A10 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS & SIGNAGE
A11 BUILDING SECTIONS
A12 RENDERINGS
A13 RENDERINGS
A14 RENDERINGS
A15 COLOR & MATERIAL BOARD
A16 PHOTO SIMULATIONS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
L0.1 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
L0.2 COURTYARD ENLARGEMENT PLAN
L0.3 COURTYARD RENDERINGS
L0.4 COURTYARD RENDERINGS
L0.5 PRELIMINARY PLANTING PLAN
L0.6 PLANT IMAGES
L0.7 SITE CROSS SECTIONS
L0.8 SITE CROSS SECTIONS

CIVIL
C-1 COVER SHEET, NOTES
C-2 EXISTING CONDITION PLAN / DEMOLITION PLAN
C-3 PRELIMINARY GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C-4 COURTYARD GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C-5 CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
C-6 STORMWATER CONTROL PLAN NOTES
C-7 PRELIMINARY STORMWATER CONTROL PLAN
C-8 STORMWATER CONTROL PLAN DETAILS
C-9 CROSS SECTIONS

C-10 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C-11 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
C-12 CONSTRUCTION BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

SURVEY
1 OF 1 PRELIMINARY ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY - DATA
2 OF 2 PRELIMINARY ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

EXTERIOR LIGHTING
AL 0.1 DRAWING INDEX SHEET
AL 0.2 EXTERIOR LIGHTING - ENTRY FACADE
AL 0.3 EXTERIOR LIGHTING - NORTH FACADE

AL 20.0 EXTERIOR LIGHTING GROUND LEVEL
AL 22.0 EXTERIOR LIGHTING LEVEL 2
AL 26.0 EXTERIOR LIGHTING ROOF LEVEL

30



31



0

1 / 1 6  "  = 1 ' - 0 "

5' 10' 20' 30' 40'

HOLLY HOTEL GROUP, LLC HOTEL INDIGO SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 10-09-2020 19103

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL 08-06-2021
PLANNING RESUBMITTAL 2 11-30-2021

FIRE DEPT. AMMR SUBMITTAL 01-20-2022

CEQA/PW COMMENT RESPONSE 05-01-2023
FAA SUBMITTAL 04-26-2023

A9EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS & SIGNAGE

32



0

1 / 1 6  "  = 1 ' - 0 "

5' 10' 20' 30' 40'

HOLLY HOTEL GROUP, LLC HOTEL INDIGO SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 10-09-2020 19103

PLANNING RESUBMITTAL 08-06-2021
PLANNING RESUBMITTAL 2 11-30-2021

FIRE DEPT. AMMR SUBMITTAL 01-20-2022

CEQA/PW COMMENT RESPONSE 05-01-2023
FAA SUBMITTAL 04-26-2023

A10EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS & SIGNAGE

33



HOLLY HOTEL GROUP, LLC HOTEL INDIGO SAN CARLOS, CALIFORNIA
PLANNING SUBMITTAL 10-09-2020 19103

PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  RREESSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL  0088--0066--22002211
PPLLAANNNNIINNGG  RREESSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL  22  1111--3300--22002211

FFIIRREE  DDEEPPTT..  AAMMMMRR  SSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL  0011--2200--22002222

CCEEQQAA//PPWW  CCOOMMMMEENNTT  RREESSPPOONNSSEE  0055--0011--22002233
FFAAAA  SSUUBBMMIITTTTAALL  0044--2266--22002233

A11BUILDING SECTIONS

34



35



Attachment 2

36



Attachment 3

37



Attachment 4

38



Mail Processing Center
Federal Aviation Administration
Southwest Regional Office
Obstruction Evaluation Group
10101 Hillwood Parkway
Fort Worth, TX 76177

Aeronautical Study No.
2023-AWP-7818-OE

Page 1 of 2

Issued Date: 07/10/2023

E.C. Liu
Holly Hotel Group, LLC
991 West Hedding St, Suite 103
San Jose, CA 95126

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Commercial Use Building Hotel Indigo
Location: San Carlos, CA
Latitude: 37-30-43.71N NAD 83
Longitude: 122-15-22.29W
Heights: 13 feet site elevation (SE)

82 feet above ground level (AGL)
95 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure does not exceed obstruction standards and would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s), if any, is(are) met:

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

_____ At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part 1)
__X__ Within 5 days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part 2)

Based on this evaluation, marking and lighting are not necessary for aviation safety. However, if marking/
lighting are accomplished on a voluntary basis, we recommend it be installed in accordance with FAA Advisory
circular 70/7460-1 M.

This determination expires on 01/10/2025 unless:

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.
(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission

(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.

Attachment 5

39



Page 2 of 2

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION
OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates, heights,
frequency(ies) and power. Any changes in coordinates, heights, and frequencies or use of greater power, except
those frequencies specified in the Colo Void Clause Coalition; Antenna System Co-Location; Voluntary Best
Practices, will void this determination. Any future construction or alteration, including increase to heights,
power, or the addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA.This determination includes all
previously filed frequencies and power for this structure.

If construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after
the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the
FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or
regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

If we can be of further assistance, please contact our office at (424) 405-7641, or tameria.burch@faa.gov. On
any future correspondence concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical Study Number 2023-AWP-7818-
OE.

Signature Control No: 583245204-592852401 ( DNE )
Tameria Burch
Technician

40



 
 
C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 

 
Date: September 28, 2023 
 
To: Airport Land Use Committee 
 
From: Susy Kalkin 
 
Subject: San Francisco International Airport Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility 

Plan Consistency Review – Comprehensive update of the Burlingame Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
 
(For further information or response to questions, contact Susy Kalkin – kkalkin@smcgov.org) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
That the C/CAG Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) recommend to the C/CAG Board of 
Directors, that the C/CAG Board, acting as the Airport Land Use Commission, determine that the 
Burlingame Zoning Ordinance update is consistent with the applicable airport/land use policies and 
criteria contained in the Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San 
Francisco International Airport (SFO ALUCP), subject to the following conditions: 
 
Prior to adoption, the Burlingame Zoning Ordinance shall be amended to incorporate the following 
revisions: 
 

• Revise Chapter 25.24, as outlined in Attachment 2. 
 

• Amend Section 25.12.020 (D) and 25.14.020 (D) as follows, and add to Chapters 25.10.020 
and 25.18.020 (additions in underline – deletions in strikeout):   

 
Airport Land Use Compatibility. Uses must comply with all applicable Noise, Safety, and 
Airspace Protection Compatibility Policies SP-1 through SP-3 of the Comprehensive Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport 
(ALUCP) including Noise/Land Use Compatibility and Safety Compatibility Criteria listed in 
Tables IV-1 and IV-2. See Chapter 25.24 Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan Consistency.  Some uses listed in Table 25.14-1 (Mixed-Use Zoning Districts Use 
Regulations) may be incompatible in safety zones. Refer to ALUCP Exhibit IV-9 for a map of 
the safety compatibility zones. 

 
• Amend Table 25.10-1: Residential Zoning Districts Use Regulations as follows:  

 
o Add a footnote to “School” (public and private) and “Residential Care” (nursing 

homes) uses to clarify that they are not allowed within Safety Zones 2, 3 or 4. 
 

• Amend Table 25.12-1: Commercial and Industrial Zoning District Use Regulations as 
follows: 

Item 6 

41



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – Burlingame Zoning  
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 2  
 
 

o Add a footnote to “Commercial Recreation – Large Scale” to clarify that stadiums and 
arenas are not permitted within Safety Zone 3. 

 
o Modify footnotes on “Daycare Centers”, “Office – Research and Development” and 

“Schools, Primary and Secondary” to remove reference to I/I zoning district (since 
restriction applies to all properties located within Safety Zone 3, regardless of zoning.) 

 
o Add a footnote to “Extended Stay Hotels”, “Hotels and Motels”, and “Caretaker 

Quarters” to note that such uses located within the CNEL 65 dB contour are subject to 
sound insulation and avigation easement requirements. 

 
• Amend Table 25.18-1: Public/Institutional Zoning District Use Regulations as follows: 

 
o Add a footnote to “Hospitals” and “Schools” (Public and Private) to clarify that these 

uses are not allowed within Safety Zone 3. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2018, the City of Burlingame completed an update of its General Plan.  This document was 
reviewed by the ALUC and found conditionally compatible with the SFO ALUCP.  Subsequently, 
Burlingame developed updated zoning for the North Burlingame Mixed Use (NBMU) and North 
Rollins Mixed Use (RRMU) zone districts, which were also reviewed by the ALUC and found 
conditionally compatible.  The current proposal includes a comprehensive update to the Zoning 
Ordinance, which is intended to implement the General Plan.  The NBMU and RRMU chapters have 
not been changed since being reviewed by the ALUC and C/CAG, except to incorporate the changes 
that were included in the conditional compatibility determinations.   
 
Virtually the entire community of Burlingame is located within Airport Influence Area B (AIA B), 
the “Project Referral” area, for San Francisco International Airport.  The Zoning Amendments are 
subject to Airport Land Use Committee/Board review pursuant to California Public Utilities Code 
(PUC) Section 21676(b).   In accordance with these requirements, the City of Burlingame has 
referred the Zoning Ordinance update to C/CAG, acting as the San Mateo County Airport Land Use 
Commission, for a determination of consistency with the SFO ALUCP. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
ALUCP Consistency Evaluation 
 
The SFO ALUCP includes policies regarding establishment of an Airport Influence Area, with 
related real estate disclosure requirements and Airport Land Use Commission review authority; noise 
compatibility policies and criteria; safety policies and criteria; and airspace protection policies.  The 
consistency analysis for a zoning ordinance focuses on how the document will serve to prevent future 
development of land uses that would conflict with these airport land use compatibility policies.  

42



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – Burlingame Zoning  
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 3  
 
 
New ALUCP Chapter 
 
The Zoning Ordinance, which provides development standards and review procedures, needs to 
identify the steps that will be taken during project review to ensure ALUCP criteria are considered.   
The general approach in this Zoning Ordinance Update has been to add a new Chapter (Chapter 
25.24), entitled “Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency”, which 
establishes the standards and requirements related to consistency with the SFO ALUCP.   ALUC staff 
has recommended revisions to Chapter 25.24, as outlined in Attachment 2, to ensure the language 
addresses all aspects of ALUCP compatibility.  Subject to these revisions, Chapter 25.24 would 
address the following: 
 
 Airport Real Estate Disclosure Notices – Require all applicable projects to comply with the 

real estate disclosure requirements outlined in SFO ALUCP Policy IP-1. 
 Airport Noise Evaluation and Mitigation – Requires evaluation of potential noise impacts of 

projects located within the CNEL 65 dB contour, as mapped in the ALUCP, and mitigation to 
achieve CNEL 45 dB interior or lower, consistent with SFO ALUCP Policies NP 2 & NP 3.  

 Avigation Easement – Requires grant of an avigation easement to the City/County of San 
Francisco as a condition of developing any land use considered to be conditionally compatible 
per the SFO ALUCP Table IV-I, consistent with SFO ALUCP Noise Policy NP-3. 

 Safety Compatibility Evaluation – Requires that all uses comply with the Safety Compatibility 
Policies of the ALUCP, consistent with SFO ALUCP Safety Policy SP 1, 2 & 3.  

 Airspace Projection Evaluation – 
1. Requires applicants to file Form 7460-1, Notice of Proposed Construction or 

Alteration, with the FAA for any proposed new structure and/or alterations to existing 
structures that would exceed the FAA notification heights consistent with SFO 
ALUCP Policy AP-1.  

2. Restricts maximum building heights to the maximum height limits permissible under 
FAA regulations and the SFO ALUCP Critical Aeronautical Surfaces requirements, 
consistent with SFO ALUCP Policy AP-3. 

3. Other Flight Hazards – Consistent with SFO ALUCP Policy AP-4, for projects located 
with AIA B, calls for evaluation of land use characteristics to assure they are not 
hazards to air navigation, including sources of glare; distracting lights; sources of dust, 
smoke, steam, electric or electronic interference; wildlife attractants (especially flocks 
of birds), etc. 

 
Land Use Regulations  
 
In addition to the new ALUCP Chapter, the Zoning Ordinance includes footnotes within the “Use 
Regulation Tables” for the various zones that are affected by ALUCP policies to highlight/identify 
uses that may be restricted due to ALUCP policies.  In general, the proposal largely addresses 
ALUCP compatibility concerns, however a few modifications are recommended as follow: 
 

• Amend Section 25.12.020 (D) and 25.14.020 (D) as follows, and add to Chapters 25.10.020 and 
25.18.020 (additions in underline –deletions in strikeout):   

43



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – Burlingame Zoning  
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 4  
 

 
Airport Land Use Compatibility. Uses must comply with all applicable Noise, Safety, and 
Airspace Protection Compatibility Policies SP-1 through SP-3 of the Comprehensive Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport 
(ALUCP) including Noise/Land Use Compatibility and Safety Compatibility Criteria listed in 
Tables IV-1 and IV-2. See Chapter 25.24 Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan Consistency.  Some uses listed in Table 25.14-1 (Mixed-Use Zoning Districts Use 
Regulations) may be incompatible in safety zones. Refer to ALUCP Exhibit IV-9 for a map of 
the safety compatibility zones. 

 
• Amend Table 25.10-1: Residential Zoning Districts Use Regulations as follows:  

 
o Add a footnote to “School” (public and private) and “Residential Care” (nursing 

homes) uses to clarify that they are not allowed within Safety Zones 2, 3 or 4. 
 

• Amend Table 25.12-1: Commercial and Industrial Zoning District Use Regulations as 
follows: 
 

o Add a footnote to “Commercial Recreation – Large Scale” to clarify that stadiums and 
arenas are not permitted within Safety Zone 3. 
 

o Modify footnotes on “Daycare Centers”, “Office – Research and Development” and 
“Schools, Primary and Secondary” to remove reference to I/I zoning district (since 
restriction applies to all properties located within Safety Zone 3, regardless of zoning.) 

, 
o Add a footnote to “Extended Stay Hotels”, “Hotels and Motels”, and “Caretaker 

Quarters” to note that such uses located within the CNEL 65 dB contour are subject to 
sound insulation and avigation easement requirements. 

 
• Amend Table 25.18-1: Public/Institutional Zoning District Use Regulations as follows: 

 
o Add a footnote to “Hospitals” and “Schools” (Public and Private) to clarify that these 

uses are not allowed within Safety Zone 3. 
 
SFO Planning Comments 

 
SFO Planning and Environmental Affairs reviewed the proposal and provided a detailed comment 
letter, Attachment 5.  In general, they do not note any specific concerns, but recommended some 
clarifying language to avoid potential ambiguity associated with governing height restrictions.  This 
language has been incorporated into the recommended revisions to Chapter 25.24 (Attachment 2).   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. ALUCP application & related materials 

44



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – Burlingame Zoning  
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 5  
 
2. Chapter 25.24 Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Consistency – Recommended 

Revisions (Redline) 
3. SFO ALUCP Exhibit IV-6 – Noise  
4. SFO ALUCP Exhibit IV-9 – Safety   
5. Comment letter from SFO Planning and Environmental Affairs dated August 17, 2023  

 
The following attachment is available to download at: 
https://library.qcode.us/lib/burlingame_ca/pub/municipal_code/item/title_25  

 
6. Burlingame Zoning Ordinance 

45

https://library.qcode.us/lib/burlingame_ca/pub/municipal_code/item/title_25


APPLICATION FOR LAND USE CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION 
San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission 

C/CAG ALUC 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Agency: 

Project Name: 

 :NPA :sserddA

 :edoC PIZ :etatS :ytiC

 :liamE :enohP :tcatnoC ffatS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

REQUIRED PROJECT INFORMATION  

For General Plan, Speci c Plan or Zoning Amendments and Development Projects: 

A copy of the relevant amended  maps, etc., together with a detailed descr on of the proposed 
changes, su cient to provide the following: 

1. Adequate informa on to establish the rela onship of the project to the three areas of Airport Land Use
compa bility concern (ex. a summary of the planning documents and/or project development materials
describing how ALUCP compa ility issues are addressed):

a) Noise: Loc  of project/plan area in re  to the noise contours iden ed in the applicable ALUCP. 

- Ide y any relevant c cussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 
ALUCP noise policies. 

b) Safety: Loca  of project/plan area in rela n to the safety zones ide ed in the applicable ALUCP.

- Include any relevant c cussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 
ALUCP safety policies. 

c) Airspace Prote :   

- Include relevant ci s/discussion of allowable heights in rela  to the protected airspace/proximity 
to airport, as well as addressment of any land uses or design features that may cause visual, electronic, 
naviga al, or wildlife hazards, par cularly bird strike hazards.    

City of Burlingame

 Zoning Ordinance Update

Citywide

Burlingame CA

N/A

94010

Kevin Gardiner 650-558-7253 kgardiner@burlingame.org

Comprehensive update of the City of Burlingame Zoning Ordinance.

The Zoning Ordinance implements the General Plan (reviewed by ALUC in 2018). It incorporates the previously Interim Zoning 

 Chapters for the North Burlingame Mixed Use (NBMU) and North Rollins Road Mixed Use (RRMU) Districts (reviewed by ALUC  

 in 2019).

Attachment 1

46



C/CAG ALUC 12/18 
 

- If applicable, identify how property owners are advised of the need to submit Form 7460-1, Notice of 
Proposed /Construction or Alteration with the FAA. 

2. Real Estate Disclosure requirements related to airport proximity 
  

3. Any related environmental documentation (electronic copy preferred) 
 

4. Other documentation as may be required (ex. related staff reports, etc.) 
 
Additional information For Development Projects: 
 
1. 25 sets of scaled plans, no larger than 11” x 17” 
2. Latitude and longitude of development site 
3. Building heights relative to mean sea level (MSL) 

 

 

ALUCP Plans can be accessed at http://ccag.ca.gov/plansreportslibrary/airport-land-use/ 

Please contact C/CAG staff at 650 599-1467 with any questions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 For C/CAG Staff Use Only  
Date Application Received  
Date Application Deemed 
Complete 

 

Tentative Hearing Dates:    
- Airport Land Use 

Committee 
 

- C/CAG ALUC  

47



Application for Land Use Consistency Determination 
City of Burlingame Zoning Ordinance 
Required Project Information 
 
1. Adequate information to establish the relationship of the project to the three areas of Airport 

Land Use compatibility concern (ex. a summary of the planning documents and/or project 
development materials describing how ALUCP compatibility issues are addressed): 

 
The Zoning Ordinance is an implementation of the Burlingame General Plan Update adopted in 
January 2019 (reviewed by the San Mateo County Airport Land Use Committee in October 2018, 
C/CAG Board of Directors November 2018). It incorporates the North Burlingame Mixed Use 
(NBMU) and North Rollins Mixed Use (RRMU) chapters which were previously adopted as interim 
chapters (reviewed by the San Mateo County Airport Land Use Committee in September 2020, 
C/CAG Board of Directors October 2020). The NBMU and RRMU chapters have not been changed 
since being reviewed by the ALUC and C/CAG, and includes the provisions specified by SFO, the 
ALUC and C/CAG for the respective SFO Safety Compatibility Zones. 
 
The Zoning Ordinance can be found at 
https://library.qcode.us/lib/burlingame_ca/pub/municipal_code/item/title_25 

 
a) Noise: Location of project/plan area in relation to the noise contours identified in the 

applicable ALUP. Identify any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan 
addressing compliance with ALUP noise policies. 

 
Chapter 25.24 addresses Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency. This 
includes airport disclosure notices, airport noise evaluation and mitigation, avigation easements, 
and other flight hazards. These regulations were primarily complied from the ALUC and C/CAG 
reviews of the General Plan and the Interim Mixed-Use Zoning districts. 
 
Section 25.24.030 addresses airport noise evaluation and mitigation:  
 

Project applicants shall be required to evaluate potential airport noise impacts if the project 
is located within the 65 CNEL contour line of San Francisco International Airport (as mapped 
in the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International 
Airport). All projects shall be required to mitigate impacts to comply with the interior (CNEL 
45 dB or lower, unless otherwise stated) and exterior noise standards established by the 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan or Burlingame General Plan, whichever is more 
restrictive. 

 
Furthermore, Section 25.24.040 addresses avigation easements: 
 

Any action that would either permit or result in the development or construction of a land 
use considered to be conditionally compatible with aircraft noise of CNEL 65 dB or greater 
(as mapped in the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan) shall include the grant of an 
avigation easement to the City and County of San Francisco prior to issuance of a building 
permit(s) for any proposed buildings or structures, consistent with Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan Policy NP-3 Grant of Avigation Easement. 

 

48



b) Safety: Location of project/plan area in relation to the safety zones identified in the applicable 
ALUP. 
 
The North Burlingame Mixed Use (NBMU) and North Rollins Mixed Use (RRMU) zones in Chapter 
24.14 include portions of ALUP Safety Compatibility Zones 2 and 3. This chapter was previously 
reviewed as interim chapters by the San Mateo County Airport Land Use Committee in 
September 2020 and the C/CAG Board of Directors October 2020. Through the ALUC and C/CAG 
review, applicable land use restrictions were identified and have been codified for properties 
located within Safety Compatibility Zones 2 and/or 3. Restrictions are specified in the “Special 
Use Regulations” column in Table 25.14-1. 

 
c) Airspace Protection: Include relevant citations/discussion of allowable heights in relation to 

the protected airspace/proximity to airport, as well as addressment of any land uses or design 
features that may cause visual, electronic, navigational, or wildlife hazards, particularly bird 
strike hazards. 
 
Building heights in many of the zoning districts are structured by “tiers”, with development 
projects required to provide community benefits in order to be allowed the highest building 
heights. The North Burlingame Mixed Use (NBMU) and North Rollins Mixed Use (RRMU) zones, 
which include areas within ALUP Safety Compatibility Zones 2 and 3, include the following 
provision:  
 

Maximum building heights are also required to comply with Airspace Protection Policies AP-1 
through AP-4 of the Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of 
San Francisco International Airport (ALUCP). This includes determining the need to file Form 
7460-1, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, with the FAA for any proposed project 
that would exceed the FAA notification heights, as shown approximately on ALUCP Exhibit 
IV-10 and complying with FAA Aeronautical Study Findings. It also includes complying with 
the maximum compatible building height, which includes all parapets, elevator overruns, etc. 
of a building, as noted in ALUCP policy AP-3 and depicted in Exhibits IV-17 and IV-18 of the 
ALUCP. 

 
Regarding bird strike hazards, Section 25.12.060.K specifies that: 
 

(a)ll development shall incorporate bird-friendly design that minimizes potential adverse 
impacts to native and migratory birds, such as fritted or patterned glass, projecting 
architectural features, lighting design, and screening with trees.  
 

This guideline is specific to the Bayfront Area, alongside the Bay, but could be extended to other 
areas if needed. 
 
Section 25.24.050 addresses other flight hazards, including glare; lights; sources of dust, smoke, 
water vapor, or steam; sources of electrical/electronic interference; and uses that create 
increased attraction to wildlife.   

 
2. Real Estate Disclosure requirements related to airport proximity 

 
Section 24.24.020 addresses airport disclosure notices:  

49



 
All new development is required to comply with the real estate disclosure requirements of 
State law. The following statement must be included in the notice of intention to offer the 
property for sale: 
 

“Notice of Airport in Vicinity 
 
This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an 
airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the 
annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: 
noise, vibration, or odors). Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person 
to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated with the 
property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to 
you.” 

 
3. Any related environmental documentation (electronic copy preferred) 
 

An Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) was prepared for the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance 
Update. 
 
The Draft and Final may be downloaded at https://www.burlingame.org/generalplan 

 
Airport-related environmental issues are addressed in the DEIR in: 

 Chapter 11 – Hazards and Hazardous Materials, pages 11-2 through 11-13 
 Chapter 14 – Land Use and Planning, page 14-10 
 Chapter 15 – Noise and Vibration, pages 15-6, pages 15-15 through 15-21, and pages 15-49 

through 15-50. 
 
The FEIR provided responses to letters from San Francisco International Airport and the Airport Land 
Use Commission on page 4, and further addressed on page 10. 
 

4. Other documents as may be required (ex: related staff reports, etc.) 
 

A digital “ePlan” version of the General Plan can be found at: 
https://www.envisionburlingame.org/ 
 

 

50



Rollins Rd

State Highway 82

California Dr

A
ir

p
o

rt
 B

lv
d

Tr
o

us
d

al
e 

D
r

Howard
 A

ve

Ade
lin

e 
D

r

Paloma Ave

Ralst
on Ave

£¤101

§̈¦280

Edgehill D
r

California Dr

Carolan Ave

Balboa Ave

Bernal Ave

Drake Ave

Easto
n Dr

Cortez Ave

Ra
y 

D
r

H
ill

si
d

e 
D

r

Bay
sw

ater A
ve

Adrian Rd

Laguna Ave

O
ld

 B
aysho

re B
lvd

Cabrillo Ave

State Highway 35

Sebastian Dr

Car
m

el
ita

 A
ve

Vancouver Ave

Sequoia Ave

Barro
ilhet A

ve

Dwight Rd

Dav
is 

Dr

Arg
uello

 D
r

Oak G
ro

ve
 A

ve

Capuchino AveHunt D
r

Bloom
field Rd

Park Rd

Fro
ntera W

ay

Gilbreth Rd

H
al

e 
D

r

O
ccid

ental A
ve

Crescent Ave

Anza
 Blvd

Pepper Ave

Be
lle

vu
e 

A
ve

Anita Rd

Lorton Ave

Prim
rose Rd

Columbus Ave

Palm
 D

r

Rivera D
r

E Belle
vu

e A
ve

W
alnut Ave

Marip
osa Dr

Stanley Rd

Atwater Dr

Highland Ave

Victoria Rd

Clarendon Rd

Channing Rd

Benito Ave

Po
p

py
 D

r

Arundel Rd

Bancroft Rd

A
cacia D

r

Burlin
gam

e A
ve

N
 Clarem

ont StC
ha

pi
n 

A
ve

Chula Vista Ave

M
ar

tin
ez

 D
r

Le
xin

gto
n W

ay

De Soto Ave

N
 D

elaware St

Quesada Way

Park 
Ave

Carlos Ave

M
itt

en 
Rd

Sa
nc

he
z 

A
ve

M
yrtle Rd

M
arin Dr

St
an

to
n 

Rd

Escalante W
ay

Elm
 A

ve

Fairfield Rd

Alvarado Ave

M
al

co
lm

 R
d

M
ills

 A
ve

Cowan
 R

d

C
hapin Ln

Westmoor Rd

Morre
ll A

ve

Lin
co

ln
 A

ve

G
ro

ve
 A

ve

D
ev

er
eu

x 
D

r

Hin
ck

le
y R

d

Valdivia Way

N Carolan Ave

Albemarle Way

Bur
lw

ay
 R

d

M
ah

le
r R

d

Castillo Ave

Lom
a Vista D

r

Alturas D
r

Montero Ave

Balboa Way

Alcazar Dr

Plym
outh

 W
ay

Ogden Dr

Larkspur D
r

Los Altos D
r

C
yp

re
ss

 A
ve

Vern
on W

ay

Peninsu
la Ave

Lassen Way

Marsten Rd

D
av

id
 R

d

W
inchester DrLaurel Ave

O
xf

ord
 R

d

Beach Rd

N
ew

la
nd

s 
A

ve

Linden Ave

Toledo Ave

Cam
brid

ge 
Rd

Almer Rd

El Camino Real

C
la

ric
e 

Ln

Farringdon Ln

Eastwood Rd

D
uf

fe
rin

 A
ve

Chatham
 Rd

Hoover Ave

Donnelly
 A

ve

Fr
an

ci
sc

o
 D

r

Garden Dr

D
ou

gl
as

 A
ve

El
 Q

ua
ni

to
 W

ay

Margarita
 Ave

Bro
deric

k R
d

G
ui

tta
rd

 R
d

M
aj

ill
a 

A
ve

Mcdonald Way

In
go

ld
 R

d

Adria
n C

t

C
osta Rica A

ve

Ke
nm

ar
 W

ay

Cad
ill

ac
 W

ay

Meadow Ln

Ki
lla

rn
ey

 L
n

Ed
war

ds
 C

t

Bay View Pl

Ro
os

ev
el

t A
ve

To
yo

n 
D

r

Conco
rd

 W
ay

Br
oa

dw
ay

Sanchez A
ve

Burlin
gam

e A
ve

La M
esa Dr

H
ill

sid
e 

D
r

Rive
ra D

r

CITY OF
SAN MATEO

SAN FRANCISCO BAY

CITY OF
HILLSBOROUGH

CITY OF
MILLBRAE

X

0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles[

City of Burlingame

ZONING MAP
Updated 11/30/2021

Proposed Zoning Districts

R1 - Low Density Residential
R2 - Medium Density Residential
R3 - Medium/High Density Residential
R4 - High Density Residential
C1 - General Commercial
BFC - Bayfront Commercial
I/I - Innovation Industrial
BRMU - Broadway Mixed Use
CMU - California Drive Mixed Use
NBMU - North Burlingame Mixed Use
RRMU - Rollins Road Mixed Use
PR - Parks and Recreation
P/I - Public/Institutional
TP/B - Tidal Plain/Bay

Overlay Areas

Anita Road R-3
Commercial Residential
Downtown Parking Sector
Hillside Area
Multi-Unit Residential
Open Space Easement
R-4 Incentive
Rollins Road Residential

Downtown Specific Plan

Downtown Specific Plan Districts

BAC - Burlingame Ave. Commercial
BMU - Bayswater Mixed Use
CAC - Chapin Ave. Commercial
CAR - California Auto Row
DAC - Donnelly Commercial
HMU - Howard Mixed Use
MMU - Myrtle Mixed Use

City Boundary

Caltrain

Highway/Freeway

51



Prior to adoption, the Burlingame Zoning Ordinance shall be amended as indicated below (additions in 
underline/deletions in strikeout) 

 

Chapter 25.24 

COMPREHENSIVE AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN CONSISTENCY 

Sections: 

25.24.010 Purpose. 

25.24.020 Airport Disclosure Notices. 

25.24.030 Airport Noise Evaluation and Mitigation. 

25.24.040 Avigation Easement. 

25.24.050 Safety Compatibility Evaluation 

25.24.060 Airspace Protection Evaluation 

25.24.050 Other Flight Hazards. 

25.24.010 Purpose. 

This Chapter establishes the standards and requirements related to consistency with the Development 
must comply with Safety Compatibility Policies SP-1 through SP-3 of the Comprehensive Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport (ALUCP) including 
Noise/Land Use Compatibility and Safety Compatibility Criteria listed in Tables IV-1 and IV-2 of the 
ALUCP. Some uses may be incompatible in certain safety zones. Refer to ALUCP Exhibit IV-9 for a map of 
the safety compatibility zones. (Ord. 2000 § 2, (2021))The following requirements shall be incorporated 
into all applicable projects. 

25.24.020 Airport Disclosure Notices. 

All new development is required to comply with the real estate disclosure requirements of State law. 
The following statement must be included in the notice of intention to offer the property for sale: 

“Notice of Airport in Vicinity 

This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an airport 
influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or 
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or 
odors). Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may 
wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated with the property before you 
complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to you.” 

(Ord. 2000 § 2, (2021)) 

25.24.030 Airport Noise Evaluation and Mitigation. 

Attachment 2

52



All projects shall comply with the Noise Compatibility Policies of the ALUCP.  Uses shall be reviewed per 
the Noise/Land Use Compatibility Criteria listed in Table IV-1 of the ALUCP.  Project applicants shall be 
required to evaluate potential airport noise impacts if the project is located within the 65 CNEL contour 
line of San Francisco International Airport (as mapped in the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the 
Environs of San Francisco International Airport). All projects shall be required to mitigate impacts to 
comply with the interior (CNEL 45 dB or lower, unless otherwise stated) and exterior noise standards 
established by the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan or Burlingame General Plan, whichever is more 
restrictive. (Ord. 2000 § 2, (2021)) 

25.24.040 Avigation Easement. 

Any action that would either permit or result in the development or construction of a land use 
considered to be conditionally compatible with aircraft noise of CNEL 65 dB or greater (as mapped in the 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan) shall include the grant of an avigation easement to the City and 
County of San Francisco prior to issuance of a building permit(s) for any proposed buildings or 
structures, consistent with Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Policy NP-3 Grant of Avigation Easement. 
(Ord. 2000 § 2, (2021)) 

25.24.050 Safety Compatibility Evaluation 

All uses must comply with Safety Compatibility Policies of the ALUCP. Project applicants shall be 
required to evaluate potential safety issues if the property is located within any of the Safety 
Compatibility Zones established in ALUCP Policy SP-1 and depicted in Exhibit IV-9 of the ALUCP. All 
projects located within a Safety Compatibility Zone shall be required to determine if the proposed land 
use is compatible with the Safety Compatibility Land Use Criteria as noted in ALUCP Policy SP-2 and 
listed in Table IV-2 of the ALUCP. 

 

25.24.060 Airspace Protection Evaluation 

All projects shall comply with the Airspace Protection Policies of the ALUCP.   

1. Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration. Project applicants shall be required to file Form 7460-
1, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for any 
proposed new structure and/or alterations to existing structures (including ancillary antennae, 
mechanical equipment, and other appurtenances) that would exceed the FAA notification heights as 
depicted in ALUCP Exhibit IV-12. Any project that would exceed the FAA notification heights shall submit 
a copy of the findings of the FAA’s aeronautical study, or evidence demonstrating exemption from 
having to file FAA Form 7460-1, as part of the development permit application. 

2. Maximum Compatible Building Height. All projects shall comply with the maximum building height 
requirements noted in ALUCP Policy AP-3 and depicted in Exhibit IV-18 of the ALUCP. For avoidance of 
doubt, the lower of the two heights identified by the ALUCP and the FAA shall be the controlling 
maximum height.   Maximum building height includes all parapets, elevator overruns, stair towers, 
antennae, etc.  

25.24.0503. Other Flight Hazards. 

53



Within Airport Influence Area (AIA) B, certain land use characteristics are recognized as hazards to air 
navigation and, per SFO ALUCP Policy AP-4, need to be evaluated to ensure compatibility with FAA rules 
and regulations. These characteristics include the following: 

A. Sources of glare, such as highly reflective buildings, building features, or blight lights including search 
lights, or laser displays, which would interfere with the vision of pilots in command of an aircraft in 
flight. 

B. Distracting lights that could be mistaken for airport identification lightings, runway edge lighting, 
runway end identification lighting, or runway approach lighting. 

C. Sources of dust, smoke, water vapor, or steam that may impair the visibility of a pilot in command of 
an aircraft in flight. 

D. Sources of electrical/electronic interference with aircraft communications/navigation equipment. 

E. Any use that creates an increased attraction for wildlife, particularly large flocks of birds, that is 
inconsistent with FAA rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, FAA Order 5200.5A, Waste 
Disposal Site On or Near Airports and FAA Advisory Circular 150/5200-33B, Hazardous Wildlife 
Attractants On or Near Airports and any successor or replacement orders or advisory circulars. (Ord. 
2000 § 2, (2021)) 

54



LEGEND

CNEL Contour, 2020 Forecast
Airport Property 

BART Station

CALTRAIN Station

School 

Place of Worship

Hospital 

Municipal Boundary 
Railroad
Freeway

Road
Planned Land Use Per General Plans:

Public 

Multi-Family Residential

Single Family Residential

Mixed Use 

Transit Oriented Development

Commercial 

Industrial, Transportation, and Utilities

Local Park, Golf Course, Cemetery

Regional Park or Recreation Area

Open Space 

Planned use not mapped

Sources:

Noise Contour Data: 
- Draft Environmental Assessment, Proposed Runway Safety Area
Program, San Francisco International Airport. URS Corporation and
BridgeNet International, June 2011

County Base Maps: 
- San Mateo County Planning & Building Department, 2007

Local Plans: 
- Burlingame Bayfront Specific Area Plan, August 2006 
- Burlingame Downtown Specific Plan, January 2009 
- Burlingame General Map, September 1984 
- North Burlingame/ Rollins Road Specific Plan, February 2007
- Colma Municipal Code Zoning Maps, December 2003 
- Daly City General Plan Land Use Map, 1987 
- Hillsborough General Plan, March 2005 
- Millbrae Land Use Plan, November 1998 
- Pacifica General Plan, August 1996 
- San Bruno General Plan, December 2008 
- San Mateo City Land Use Plan, March 2007 
- San Mateo County Zoning Map, 1992 
- South San Francisco General Plan, 1998 

NORTH

0     0.1   0.2 0.4
Miles

Exhibit IV-6
NOISE COMPATIBILITY ZONES --

DETAIL
Comprehensive Airport Land Use Plan

for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport

C/CAG
City/County Association of Governments

of San Mateo County, California

R

B

W

SA
N

M
A

TE
O

AV
E

CCoollmmaa
BBrriissbbaannee
101

DDaallyy CCiittyy

280

SSoouutthh SSaann FFrraanncciissccoo

101

SSSaaannn FFFrrraaannnccciii ssscccooo
BBBaaayyy

SSSaaannn FFFrrraaannnccciii ssscccooo
IIInnn ttteee rrrnnnaaa ttt iiiooo nnnaaalll AAA iiirrrpppooo rrrttt

EEE lleee vvv aaa ttiiooo nnn 111 333 ..222 FFF eee eee tt

380
E SAN BRUNO AVE

SSaann BBrruunnoo

Y 82

PPaacciiffiiccaa

101

MMiillllbbrraaee
SSSaaa nnn AAAnnn ddd rrr eee aaasss LLL aaakkk eee

BBuurrlliinnggaammee

Attachment 3

55



55CAPUCHINO HIGH SCHOOL

UU nn ii nn cc ..

33CENTRAL PARK

MILLBRAE SERRA

Specific Area PlanHOSPITAL

44

LEGEND

Safety Compatibility Zones Planned Land Use Per General Plans Sources: 
1 - Runway Protection Zone-Object Free Area
2 - Inner Approach/Departure Zone 
3 - Inner Turning Zone 
4 - Outer Approach/Departure Zone
5 - Sideline Zones 
Internal boundaries of ALP-defined areas
Specific Plan Area 
Airport Property

BART Station

CALTRAIN Station

School 

Place of Worship

Hospital 

Municipal Boundary
Railroad 
Freeway

Major Road 

Road 

Public 

Multi-Family Residential

Single Family Residential

Mixed Use 

Transit Oriented Development 

Commercial 

Industrial, Transportation, and Utilities

Local Park, Golf Course, Cemetery

Regional Park or Recreation Area 

Open Space 

Local Plans: 
- San Bruno General Plan, December 2008
- South San Francisco General Plan, 1998 

ExhibitIV-9
SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONES

IN THE CITIES OF BURLINGAME AND MILLBRAE
Comprehensive Airport Land Use Plan

for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport

C/CAG
City/County Association of Governments

of San Mateo County, California

NORTH

0 0.125 0.25 0.5
Miles

U

UU nn ii nn cc ..

MILLBRAE NURSERY SCHOOL 55
101

SAINT DUNSTANS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

BAYSIDE PARK 11 BAYFRONT PARK

2

MILLBRAE CITY HALL

82 Millbrae  Station
Area Specific Plan

MMiillllbbrraaee CONVALESCENT 
Burlingame Bayfront

TAYLOR MIDDLE SCHOOL

SECOND LANGUAGE
INSTITUTE

22 33
MILLS HIGH SCHOOL North Burlingame/Rollins Road

Specific Plan

PENINSULA HOSPITAL

SPRING VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

BBuurrlliinnggaammee

FRANKLIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LINCOLN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL COOLIDGE GRAMMAR SCHOOL

BURLINGAME INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL

MILLS ESTATE PARK

OUR LADY OF ANGELS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

8
SISTERS OF MERCY

MILLS CANYON PARK

CUERNAVACA PARK BURLINGAME FIRE STATION 35 ROOSEVELT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Attachment 4

56



August 17, 2023 

Susy Kalkin TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL ONLY 
ALUC Staff kkalkin@smcgov.org 
City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County 
555 County Center, 5th Floor 
Redwood City, California 94063 

Subject: Application for Land Use Consistency Determination for City of Burlingame Zoning 
Ordinance Update 

Thank you for notifying San Francisco International Airport (SFO or the Airport) regarding the Airport Land 
Use Commission’s (ALUC) land use consistency determination for the draft City of Burlingame (City) 
Zoning Ordinance Update (the Proposed Project). We appreciate this opportunity to coordinate with ALUC 
in considering and evaluating potential land use compatibility issues for the Proposed Project. 

According to the application, the Proposed Project is a comprehensive update to the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance. The Proposed Project would implement the City’s 2018 General Plan as well as the Interim 
Zoning Chapters for the North Burlingame Mixed Use and North Rollins Road Mixed Use Districts. This 
Zoning Ordinance Update would apply to the entire City, which is an approximately six square mile 
municipality located immediately to the south of the Airport. 

Airport Influence Area 
The Proposed Project site is inside Airport Influence Area B as defined by the Comprehensive Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport (SFO ALUCP). Within 
Area B, the Board of Directors of the City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County, acting 
as the designated Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC), shall review proposed land use policy actions, 
including new general plans, specific plans, zoning ordinances, plan amendments and rezonings, and land 
development proposals. 

The real estate disclosure requirements in Area A also apply in Area B; specifically, a property owner 
offering a property for sale or lease must disclose the presence of planned or existing airports within 
two miles of the property. 

Section 24.24.020 of the Zoning Ordinance Update requires all new developments “to comply with the real 
estate disclosure requirements of State law.” Therefore, the Proposed Project would not appear to be 
inconsistent with the disclosure policies of the SFO ALUCP. 

Noise Compatibility Policies 
The northeastern corner of the City, bounded to the north by the City’s border with the City of Millbrae and 
the San Francisco Bay, to the southeast by Mitten Road, and to the southwest by the Pacific Gas & Electric 
overhead transmission lines, lies within the 65-70 decibel (dB) Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) 
noise contour. The City’s Zoning Map shows that the affected area east of U.S. Highway 101 (US-101) is 
zoned I/I Innovation Industrial and the affected area west of US-101 is zoned RRMU Rollins Road Mixed 
Use. 

Attachment 5

57



Susy Kalkin, ALUC 
August 17, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Industrial uses are compatible with placement in the 65-70 dB CNEL contour without restriction. Within the 
mixed use zones, residential and public/institutional uses are conditionally compatible, provided that sound 
insulation is provided to reduce interior noise levels from exterior sources to 45 dB CNEL or lower and that 
an avigation easement is granted to the City and County of San Francisco as operator of SFO. Outdoor music 
shells and amphitheaters are not compatible. 
 
Sections 25.24.030 and 25.24.040 address noise compatibility and easement requirements for developments 
in the City. With these controls in place, the Proposed Project would not appear to be inconsistent with the 
Noise Compatibility Policies of the SFO ALUCP. 
 
The Airport notes that portions of the City are in close proximity to departing aircraft from Runways 1L and 
1R and arriving aircraft on Runways 28L and 28R. While this factor does not affect ALUCP compatibility 
determinations, site designers should take into account the unique sonic profiles of departing aircraft and the 
thrust reversers from arriving aircraft when planning and designing their sites.  
 
Safety Compatibility Policies 
Portions of the City lie within Safety Compatibility Zones 2 and 3. Section 25.14.020(D) incorporates by 
reference the Safety Compatibility Policies of the SFO ALUCP, including restrictions on certain uses within 
the Mixed-Use Zoning Districts Use Regulations. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not appear to be 
inconsistent with the Safety Compatibility Policies of the SFO ALUCP. 
 
Airspace Protection Policies 
The critical aeronautical surfaces above the Proposed Project are at an elevation of approximately 105 to 
535 feet above mean sea level (AMSL) as defined from the origin of the North American Vertical Datum 
of 1988 (NAVD88). Ground elevation varies within the Proposed Project site which may affect the 
maximum allowable height as measured above ground level (AGL). This should be carefully evaluated to 
stay below the allowable critical aeronautical surfaces described in the SFO ALUCP. 
 
Tables 25.12-2 and 25.14-2 of the Zoning Ordinance Update incorporate by reference the Airspace 
Protection Policies of the SFO ALUCP, including the need to comply with both FAA and SFO ALUCP 
requirements. The Airport has observed confusion among developers regarding the FAA and SFO ALUCP 
processes and recommends the addition of the following underlined language to each table’s footnote: 
 

Maximum building heights are also required to comply with Airspace Protection Policies AP-1 through 
AP-4 of the Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco 
International Airport (ALUCP). This includes determining the need to file Form 7460-1, Notice of 
Proposed Construction or Alteration, with the FAA for any proposed project that would exceed the FAA 
notification heights, as shown approximately on ALUCP Exhibit IV-10 and complying with FAA 
Aeronautical Study Findings. It also includes complying with the maximum compatible building height, 
which includes all parapets, elevator overruns, etc. of a building, as noted in ALUCP policy AP-3 and 
depicted in Exhibits IV-17 and IV-18 of the ALUCP. For avoidance of doubt, the lower of the two heights 
identified by the ALUCP and the FAA shall be the controlling maximum height. 

 
Future development project sponsors whose projects would exceed the FAA notification requirements 
described in Title 14 Code of Federal Regulation Part 77 and depicted in Exhibit IV-11 of the SFO ALUCP 
must follow FAA procedures for airspace review as for both (1) the permanent structures and (2) any 

58



Susy Kalkin, ALUC 
August 17, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
equipment taller than the permanent structures required to construct those structures (i.e., construction 
cranes, etc.). 
 
With these controls in place, the Proposed Project would not appear to be inconsistent with the Airspace 
Protection Policies of the SFO ALUCP. 
 

*   *   * 
 
The Airport appreciates your consideration of these comments. If I can be of assistance, please do not 
hesitate to contact me at (650) 821-6678 or at nupur.sinha@flysfo.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Nupur Sinha 
Director of Planning and Environmental Affairs 
San Francisco International Airport 
 
 
cc: Kevin Gardiner, City of Burlingame 

Audrey Park, SFO 
 Chris DiPrima, SFO 

59



 
 Item 7 

C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
 
Date: September 28, 2023 
 
To: Airport Land Use Committee 
 
From: Susy Kalkin 
 
Subject: San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency Review – San Carlos 

Zoning Ordinance Amendments. 
   
 (For further information please contact Susy Kalkin at kkalkin@smcgov.org) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
That the C/CAG Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) recommend to the C/CAG Board of 
Directors, that the C/CAG Board, acting as the San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission, 
determine that the proposed amendments to San Carlos’ Zoning Ordinance are consistent with the 
applicable airport/land use policies and criteria contained in the Comprehensive Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Carlos Airport (San Carlos ALUCP), subject to the 
following conditions:  
 
 Amend Section 18.21.150 C. Airport Noise Evaluation and Mitigation to reference the 

avigation easement requirements of San Carlos ALUCP Noise Policy 7.   
 

 Delete Section 18.21.150 F. Avigation Easements, as the referenced ALUCP Overflight 
Policy has been updated and is no longer relevant. 

 
 Amend Section 18.21.150 B. Airspace Protection Evaluation to reference the avigation 

easement requirements of San Carlos ALUCP Airspace Protection Policy 7. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Project Description 
 
Earlier this year, the City of San Carlos referred its 2023-2031 Housing Element for an ALUCP 
consistency determination.  At that time, San Carlos received feedback that recommended amending 
its zoning ordinance to include procedures to implement and ensure compliance with the ALUCP 
policies.  San Carlos has now prepared those amendments and has submitted them for a 
determination of consistency with relevant airport / land use compatibility criteria in the 
Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Carlos Airport (San 
Carlos ALUCP).  These amendments are subject to Airport Land Use Committee / Board review, 
pursuant to California Public Utilities Code (PUC) Section 21676(b).   
 
The full text of the proposed amendments is included in Attachment 1.   In general, the amendments 
describe the ALUCP compatibility criteria to be applied to development applications (noise, safety, 
structure heights, other flight hazards, and overflight notification requirements) and describe how the 

60



CCAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE: San Carlos ALUC Zoning Amendments 
Date: September 28, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
local agency will ensure compliance during review and approval of development projects.  A new 
section is to be added entitled “Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency”, which outlines 
the requirements associated with each of the ALUCP policy areas.  Also included are amendments to 
the Zoning Ordinance “General Site Regulations” and “Zoning Clearance Regulations” to require 
conformance with the new “ALUCP Plan Consistency” Section.  San Carlos has also provided a 
conceptual draft “ALUCP Compliance Checklist”, Attachment 2, to be used both by property 
owners and applicants to develop a proposal conforming with the ALUCP, and as reference guide 
for staff reviewers. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
ALUCP Consistency Evaluation  
 
Four airport / land use compatibility factors are addressed in the San Carlos ALUCP that relate to the 
proposed Amendments. These include policies for: (a) noise compatibility, (b) safety compatibility, 
(c) airspace compatibility, and (d) overflight compatibility.  
 
In accordance with the guidance provided in the ALUCP, local agencies must establish procedures 
in their zoning ordinances to implement and ensure compliance with the compatibility policies and 
address any direct conflicts between the zoning ordinance (heights, permitted uses, etc.) and the 
ALUCP. 
 
The following sections address how the subject amendments address each of the land use 
compatibility factors. 
 
(a) Noise Compatibility 
 
The Zoning Ordinance amendments would establish a section requiring all development projects, 
alterations, or change of use subject to the ALUCP to be reviewed for consistency with the noise 
policies of the ALUCP.  Uses listed as “conditionally compatible” in the ALUCP would be required 
to mitigate impacts to comply with the interior noise standards established in the ALUCP or General 
Plan, whichever is more restrictive. 
 
The draft Checklist specifically names each of the ALUCP noise policies 1-5 and 7, provides 
references to the relevant sections, figures, tables, and exhibits within the ALUCP and requires the 
applicant to indicate whether the project is in conformance with the standards and criteria indicated 
in the ALUCP Noise Policies (which will be verified by San Carlos staff). The City’s Geographic 
Information System (GIS) platform will provide property owners, applicants, and reviewers detailed 
information, including applicable noise contours, on any parcel in San Carlos. 
 
While the proposed text includes a general reference to Avigation Easements, it does reflect the 
updated policy enacted in 2022, which requires an avigation easement for certain “conditionally 
compatible” noise sensitive uses within the CNEL 60 dB (or greater) contour.  Therefore, the 
following conditions are recommended: 

61



CCAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE: San Carlos ALUC Zoning Amendments 
Date: September 28, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 Amend Section 18.21.150 C. Airport Noise Evaluation and Mitigation to add reference to the 

avigation easement requirements of San Carlos ALUCP Noise Policy 7.   
 Delete Section 18.21.150 F. Avigation Easements, as the referenced ALUCP Overflight 

Policy has been updated and is no longer relevant. 
 
Subject to these conditions, implementation of the proposed amendments would ensure compliance 
with the Noise Compatibility policies of the San Carlos ALUCP. 
 
(b) Safety Compatibility  
 
The proposed amendments stipulate that all proposed development projects, alterations, or change of 
use subject to the ALUCP will be reviewed for consistency with the Safety Compatibility Policies of 
the ALUCP.  Project applicants will be required to evaluate potential safety issues if the property is 
located within any of the Safety Compatibility Zones established in the ALUCP, which will be 
verified by staff as part of the development review process. 
 
Implementation of this amendment will ensure compliance with the Safety Compatibility policies of 
the ALUCP. 
 
(c) Airspace Compatibility 
 
The San Carlos ALUCP airspace policies establish maximum heights for the compatibility of new 
structures.  The policies also stipulate the need for compliance with federal regulations requiring 
notification of the FAA of certain proposed construction or alterations of structures, and to review 
projects for certain land use characteristics that might pose a hazard to air navigation (Other Flight 
Hazards). 
 
Text is included in the proposed zoning amendments to address ALUCP Airspace Policy 
consistency, summarized below: 
 
Airspace Protection Evaluation. All proposed development projects, alterations, or change of use 
subject to the ALUCP will be reviewed for consistency with Airspace Protection Policies of the 
ALUCP. These include Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, Maximum Compatible 
Building Height and Other Flight Hazards. 
 
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Requirements. Proof of consistency with FAA rules and 
regulations must be provided through either:  

- Provision of an FAA “Review Not Required” form  
- Receipt of a “Determination of No Hazard” by the FAA after submittal of FAA Form 7460-1 

“Notice of Proposed Construction”.  
 
While the proposed text includes general reference to compliance with all Airspace Protection 
Policies, it does not clearly reflect the updated policy enacted in 2022, which requires an avigation 

62



CCAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE: San Carlos ALUC Zoning Amendments 
Date: September 28, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 
easement for potential projects that would exceed the height standards or allow a use that might 
cause a visual, electronic, navigational, or wildlife hazard.  Therefore, the following condition in 
recommended: 
 
 Amend Section 18.21.150 B. Airspace Protection Evaluation to add reference to the 

avigation easement requirements of San Carlos ALUCP Airspace Protection Policy 7. 
 
Subject to the recommended condition, implementation of these zoning provisions will ensure future 
compatibility with the Airspace Protection Policies of the San Carlos ALUCP. 
 
(d) Overflight Compatibility 
 
The San Carlos ALUCP contains two policies regarding overflight compatibility which are generally 
“buyer awareness” measures focused on informing prospective buyers and/or tenants of property 
within the vicinity of an airport about the airport’s impact on the property.  Overflight Policy 1 – 
Real Estate Transfer Disclosure, requires that a notice of potential for overflights be included among 
the disclosures made during real estate transactions.  Overflight Policy 2 – Overflight Notification 
Zone 2 requires that all new residential development projects, other than additions and accessory 
dwelling units (ADUs), within Overflight Notification Zone 2 (AIA B) shall incorporate a recorded 
overflight notification requirement as a condition of approval. 
 
The proposed zoning amendments include both of these policy provisions and therefore are 
consistent with the Overflight Compatibility policies of the San Carlos ALUCP. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Application Materials 
 

The following attachments are available to download on the C/CAG website at: 
https://ccag.ca.gov/committees/airport-land-use-committee/ - see “Additional Meeting 
Materials” 
 
2. Draft “ALUCP Compliance Checklist” 

 
 

 

63

https://ccag.ca.gov/committees/airport-land-use-committee/


APPLICATION FOR LAND USE CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION 
San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission 

C/CAG ALUC 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Agency: City of San Carlos, Community Development Department 

Project Name: Zoning Ordinance Update 

Address: 610 Elm Street APN: N/A 

City: San Carlos State: California ZIP Code: 94070 

Staff Contact: Akanksha Chopra Phone: (650) 802-4350 Email: achopra@cityofsancarlos.org 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

  Zoning ordinance update. Please see attached memorandum for additional information. 

REQUIRED PROJECT INFORMATION 

For General Plan, Specific Plan or Zoning Amendments and Development Projects: 

A copy of the relevant amended sections, maps, etc., together with a detailed description of the proposed 

changes, sufficient to provide the following: 

1. Adequate information to establish the relationship of the project to the three areas of Airport Land Use

compatibility concern (ex. a summary of the planning documents and/or project development materials

describing how ALUCP compatibility issues are addressed):

a) Noise: Location of project/plan area in relation to the noise contours identified in the applicable ALUCP.

- Identify any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 

ALUCP noise policies. 

b) Safety: Location of project/plan area in relation to the safety zones identified in the applicable ALUCP.

- Include any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 

ALUCP safety policies. 

c) Airspace Protection:

- Include relevant citations/discussion of allowable heights in relation to the protected airspace/proximity 

to airport, as well as addressment of any land uses or design features that may cause visual, electronic, 

navigational, or wildlife hazards, particularly bird strike hazards. 

Attachment 1

64



- If applicable, identify how property owners are advised of the need to submit Form 7460-1, Notice of 

Proposed /Construction or Alteration with the FAA. 

 

2. Real Estate Disclosure requirements related to airport proximity 

 
3. Any related environmental documentation (electronic copy preferred) 

 
4. Other documentation as may be required (ex. related staff reports, etc.) 

Additional information For Development Projects: 

1. 25 sets of scaled plans, no larger than 11” x 17” 

2. Latitude and longitude of development site 

3. Building heights relative to mean sea level (MSL) 
 
 
 

 
ALUCP Plans can be accessed at http://ccag.ca.gov/plansreportslibrary/airport-land-use/ 

 

Please contact C/CAG staff at 650 599-1467 with any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For C/CAG Staff Use Only 

Date Application Received 

Date Application Deemed 
Complete 

Tentative Hearing Dates: 

- Airport Land Use 
Committee 

- C/CAG ALUC 
 

C/CAG ALUC 12/18 

65

http://ccag.ca.gov/plansreportslibrary/airport-land-use/


 
 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
Subject:  City of San Carlos ALUCP Determination of Compliance for Zoning 
Ordinance  
Date:  August 21, 2023 
To:   San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission C/CAG ALUC; c/o 
Susy Kalkin 
From: City of San Carlos Community Development Department; c/o Akanksha 
Chopra 

 
 
 

I. Overview 

The City of San Carlos (City) is proposing amendments to its Zoning Ordinance to bring 
it into compliance with the County of San Mateo’s Comprehensive Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for the Environs of San Carlos Airport. In 2022, as part of 
its Housing Element update process, the City had submitted its Zoning Ordinance 
amendments to Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) staff for review for compliance 
with ALUCP. The City received feedback in January, 2023 that recommended 
amending the zoning ordinance to have procedures that implement and ensure 
compliance with the ALUCP policies through describing compatibility criteria to be 
applied to development applications (safety, structure heights, overflight notification 
requirements, etc.) and describing how the local agency will ensure compliance during 
review and approval of development project. 
 
In consideration of these, the City has proposed the attached revised Zoning Ordinance 
amendments (Attachment A) that establishes procedures that ensure compliance with 
ALUCP standards and requirements, and describes applicable compatibility criteria. 
Further, to facilitate the process for review of development applications for ALUCP 
Compliance, the City has initiated internal measures that will help build the City’s 
capacity and streamline processes for review of development applications for 
compliance with ALUCP. These include creation of a new ALUCP Compliance Checklist 

66



(Attachment B), GIS layers on the City’s online maps related to key ALUCP exhibits and 
training of City’s staff to review and assist development applicants in understanding and 
implementing ALUCP standards and requirements.  
 
To address the compatibility issues regarding Noise, Safety, and Airspace Protection—
as well as Disclosures, Overflight Notification, and Avigation Easements—The Zoning 
Ordinance is proposed to be updated as follows: 

• Amend the Performance Standards Chapter (18.21) dedicated to Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan Consistency (18.21.150). This section will establish 
standards and requirements with a section devoted to each of the compatibility 
issues noted above, provide real estate disclosure language to be used, and 
indicate the relevant sections of the ALUCP that a property owner, applicant, or 
reviewer should be familiar with. Please note that this section directs applicants 
to key policy elements of ALUCP (namely safety, noise, overflight, etc.) instead 
of referencing specific section numbers for each of policies from ALUCP in 
Zoning Ordinance. This will help applicants directly refer ALUCP when preparing 
development applications, while also keep the City’s Zoning Ordinance in 
compliance with ALUCP in an instance when minor amendments are made to 
ALUCP in the future. 

• Amends the General Site Regulations Chapter (18.15) to require conformance 
with Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency (18.21.150) 

• Amends the Zoning Clearance Chapter (18.28) to require conformance with 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency (18.21.150) 

 
The City of San Carlos ALUCP Compliance Checklist and Checklist Addenda 
(Checklist) will include guidance for property owners, applicants, and reviewers 
regarding relevant ALUCP and FAA requirements and processes. It will be used both by 
property owners and applicants to develop a proposal conforming with the ALUCP, and 
as reference guide for staff reviewers. When applicable, applicants will be required to 
complete the checklist as part of any application for Zoning Clearance. It also includes 
weblinks to the 2015 ALUCP and 2022 Amendment, as well as the San Carlos Zoning 
Ordinance. The GIS layers on the City’s online platform will provide property owners, 
applicants, and reviewers with detailed information on any parcel in the City regarding 
applicable safety zones, noise contours, airspace protection surfaces, FAA notification, 
overflight, and airport influence areas. Included as attachments are the proposed 
changes to the San Carlos Zoning Ordinance and draft Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan Checklist and Checklist Addenda. Note: The draft Checklist (attachment B) is 
shared for informational purposes only to C/CAG to illustrate City’s new internal review 
practice for checking ALUCP compliance and not for review as part of zoning ordinance 
updates. 

67



 
 
II. Noise 
 

The Zoning Ordinance amendment would establish a section requiring review of 
all projects subject to the ALUCP to be reviewed for consistency with uses listed 
as conditionally compatible in the ALUCP and the noise standards and policies 
set by the ALUCP.  For proposed language see section 18.21.150.C  
 
The Checklist specifically names each of the ALUCP noise policies 1-5 and 7, provides 
references to the relevant sections, figures, tables, and exhibits within the ALUCP and 
requires the applicant to indicate if in their evaluation the project is in conformance with 
the standards and criteria indicated in the ALUCP Noise Policies. Checklist Addenda 
include Exhibit 4-2 Future Conditions (2035) Aircraft Noise Contours and Table 4-3 
Noise Compatibility Criteria. The GIS layer on the City’s GIS platform will provide 
property owners, applicants, and reviewers detailed information on any parcel in the 
City regarding applicable noise contours. 
 
III. Safety 
 

The Zoning Ordinance amendment would establish a section requiring review of 
all projects subject to the ALUCP to be reviewed for consistency the safety 
standards and policies set by the ALUCP.  For proposed language see section 
18.21.150.A. 
 
The Checklist specifically names each of the ALUCP safety policies 1 to 11, 
provides references to the relevant sections, figures, tables, and exhibits within 
the ALUCP and requires the applicant to indicate if in their evaluation the project 
is in conformance with the standards indicated in the ALUCP safety Policies. 
Checklist Addenda include Exhibit 4-3 San Carlos Airport Safety Zones and 
Table 4-4 Safety Compatibility Criteria.  The GIS layer on City’s GIS platform will 
provide property owners, applicants, and reviewers detailed information on any 
parcel in the City regarding applicable safety zones. 
 

IV. Airspace Protection 
 

The Zoning Ordinance amendment would establish a section requiring review of 
all projects subject to the ALUCP to be reviewed for the applicable standards 
and policies set by the ALUCP.  For proposed language see section 

68



18.21.150.B, subsections B. Airspace Protection Evaluation and G. FAA 
Requirements. 
 
The Checklist specifically names each of the ALUCP airspace protection policies 1 to 7 
and provides references to the relevant exhibits within the ALUCP. To address 
allowable heights in relation to protected airspace the checklist requires the applicant to 
indicate if in their evaluation the project is in conformance with the standards indicated 
in the ALUCP Airspace Protection Policies. Checklist Addenda include Exhibit 4-4 San 
Carlos Airport Part 77 Airspace Protection Surfaces and Exhibit 4-4a FAA Notification 
Form 7460-1 Filing Requirements. Requirements around FAA form 7460-1, allowable 
heights in relation to the protected airspace, and land uses or design features that may 
cause visual, electronic, navigational, or wildlife hazards, particularly bird strike hazards 
are specifically indicated on the checklist. The GIS layer on the City’s GIS platform will 
provide property owners, applicants, and reviewers detailed information on any parcel in 
the City regarding applicable safety zones.  
 

V. Real Estate Disclosure Requirements  
 
The Zoning Ordinance amendment would establish a section requiring review of 
all projects subject to the ALUCP to be reviewed for the Overflight, Avigation 
Easements, and Real Estate Disclosure standards set by the ALUCP.  For 
proposed language see section 18.21.150, subsections D. Airport Real Estate 
Disclosure Notices, E. Overflight Notification Requirement, and F. Avigation 
Easements. 
 
To address avigation easements the checklist requires the applicant to indicate if in their 
evaluation the project is in conformance with the Airspace Protection Policy 7 indicated 
in the 2022 ALUCP Amendment. The GIS layers described above will be helpful in 
evaluating some of the standards regarding avigation easement requirements. 
 

VI. Environmental Documentation 
 
N/A   

VII. Attachments 

Attachment A: Proposed changes to the San Carlos Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Attachment B: Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Checklist and Checklist Addenda 
 

69



70



1 
 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF SAN CARLOS ZONING ORDINANCE FOR 
ALUC REVIEW 

VERSION AUGUST 21, 2023 
 

 
 

18.15 GENERAL SITE REGULATIONS 

Amendments to 18.15 (Establish Section 18.15.140) 

18.15.140 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency. Where required, conformance 
with applicable Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan standards, as described in Section 
18.21.150 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency is required.  

 

18.21 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

Amendments to 18.21.050 

18.21.050: Noise: 

C.    Acoustic Study. The Director may require an acoustic study for any proposed project that 
could cause any of the following: 

1.    Locate new residential uses within the fifty-five CNEL impact area of the San 
Carlos Airport; 

1.     Create an inconsistency with the noise requirements of the San Carlos Airport as 
defined in Section 18.21.150 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency; 

a. Where applicable, noise attenuation measures may be required. 

2.    Cause noise levels to exceed the limits in Table 18.21.050-A; 

3.    Create a noise exposure that would require an acoustic study and noise attenuation 
measures listed in Table 18.21.050-B, Noise Exposure—Land Use Requirements and 
Limitations; or 

4.    Cause the Ldn at noise-sensitive uses to increase three dBA or more. 

71



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF SAN CARLOS ZONING ORDINANCE FOR ALUC REVIEW  
Version August 21, 2023 
 

2 
 

F.     Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency. Where required, conformance with 
applicable Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan standards, as described in Section 18.21.150 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency, is required. 
 

Amendments to 18.21.150 

18.21.150 Airspace protection. 

The following applies within airport influence area (AIA) B as adopted by the San Mateo County 
Airport Land Use Commission and subsequent revisions thereto, for the environs of San Carlos 
Airport. 

A.    Federal Airspace Protection Surfaces. Maximum height of structures shall not penetrate the 
civil airport imaginary surfaces as defined by the Federal Aviation Administration in (FAA) Title 
14 CFR Part 77, Surfaces. 

B.    Flight Hazards. Proposed land use actions that include land uses that may cause visual, 
electronic, or wildlife hazards may be permitted only if the uses are consistent with FAA rules 
and regulations. Proof of consistency with FAA rules and regulations must be provided to the 
Airport Land Use Commission by the sponsor of the proposed land use action. Specific 
characteristics that may create hazards to aircraft in flight and which shall be prohibited include: 

1.    Sources of glare, such as highly reflective buildings or building features, or bright light, 
including searchlights or laser displays, which would interfere with the vision of pilots; 

2.    Distracting lights that could be mistaken for airport identification lighting, runway edge 
lighting, runway end identification lighting, or runway approach lighting; 

3.    Sources of dust, smoke, water vapor, or steam that may impair visibility; 

4.    Sources of electrical interference with aircraft communications or navigation equipment; 

5.    Any use that creates an increased attraction for wildlife, particularly large flocks of birds, 
that is inconsistent with FAA rules and regulations. (Ord. 1438 § 4 (Exh. A (part)), 2011) 

18.21.150 San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency. 

This section establishes standards and requirements related to consistency within the County of 
San Mateo’s Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Carlos 
Airport (ALUCP). The ALUCP outlines the following requirements and criteria for proposed 
development projects, alterations, or change of use that are subject to the ALUCP:  

A. Safety Compatibility Evaluation. All proposed development projects, alterations, or change 
of use subject to the ALUCP will be reviewed for consistency with the County of San Mateo’s 
Safety Compatibility Policies of the ALUCP. Project applicants shall be required to evaluate 

72

http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/14
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/14
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/14/part-77
http://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/14/part-77


PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF SAN CARLOS ZONING ORDINANCE FOR ALUC REVIEW  
Version August 21, 2023 
 

3 
 

potential safety issues if the property is located within any of the Safety Compatibility Zones 
established in the ALUCP. 

B. Airspace Protection Evaluation. All proposed development projects, alterations, or change 
of use subject to the ALUCP will be reviewed for consistency with Airspace Protection Policies 
of the ALUCP. These include Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, Maximum 
Compatible Building Height and Other Flight Hazards. 

C. Airport Noise Evaluation and Mitigation. All proposed development projects, alterations, or 
change of use subject to the ALUCP will be reviewed for consistency with the noise policies of 
the ALUCP.Uses listed as “conditionally compatible” in the ALUCP will be required to mitigate 
impacts to comply with the interior noise standards established in the ALUCP or General Plan, 
whichever is more restrictive.  

D. Airport Real Estate Disclosure Notices. Proximity to the airport could affect allowable 
development and uses. All proposed developments, alteration, or change of use that are subject 
to the ALUCP are required to comply with the real estate disclosure requirements of State law 
(California Business and Professions Code Section 11010(b)(13)). The following statement by 
the seller must be included in the notice of intention to offer the property for sale or lease: 

“Notice of Airport in Vicinity. This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, 
within what is known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be 
subject to some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to 
airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual sensitivities to 
those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what 
airport annoyances, if any, are associated with the property before you complete your 
purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to you.” 

E. Overflight Notification Requirement. All new residential development projects, other than 
additions and accessory dwelling units (ADUs), within Overflight Notification Zone 2 shall 
incorporate a recorded overflight notification requirement as a condition of approval in order to 
provide a permanent form of overflight notification to all future property owners, consistent with 
ALUCP Overflight Policies. 

F. Avigation Easements. Unless otherwise precluded by State law, some projects may require 
the grant of an avigation easement by and to the County of San Mateo as a condition of 
approval prior the City of San Carlos’ issuance of a building permit(s) for any proposed buildings 
or structures, pursuant to the ALUCP Overflight Policies. 

G. Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Requirements. Proof of consistency with FAA 
rules and regulations must be provided through one of the following ways: 

1. A Federal Aviation Administration Review Not Required Form must be signed prior to 
issuance of building permit.  

73



PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF SAN CARLOS ZONING ORDINANCE FOR ALUC REVIEW  
Version August 21, 2023 
 

4 
 

2. Receive a determination of No Hazard by the FAA after submittal of FAA Form 7460-1 
Notice of Proposed Construction. Instructions and additional information on Form 7460 
can found within the ALUCP and on the FAA’s Website. 

H. Local Agency Override of an Airport Land Use Commission Determination. A process 
under which the City Council may overrule certain Airport Land Use Commission disapprovals 
under certain circumstances is established in Sections 21675.1(d), 21676(b) and 21676(c) of 
the Public Utilities Code and outlined in the ALUCP. 

I. Required Disclosures. In the event of local override action of an Airport Land Use 
Commission determination, disclosures may be required from property owners as a condition of 
approval for any use listed as conditional in the ALUCP Noise or Safety Compatibility Zone that 
corresponds with the site of the proposed project, including childcare, congregate care facilities, 
etc. Property owners are encouraged to provide appropriate notices to their tenants. 

 

18.28 ZONING CLEARANCE 

Amendments to 18.28.030 

 
18.28.030 Review and decision. Before the City may issue any business license, building 

permit, subdivision approval, or lot line adjustment, the Director shall review the application to 
determine whether the use, building, or change in lot configuration complies with all provisions 
of this title or any design review, use permit or variance approval and that all conditions of such 

permits and approvals have been satisfied. 

 

A. Application. Applications and fees for a zoning clearance shall be submitted in accordance 
with the provisions set forth in Section 18.27.020, Application forms and fees. The Director may 
request that the zoning clearance application be accompanied by a written narrative, plans and 
other related materials necessary to show that the proposed development, alteration, or use of 
the site complies with all provisions of this title and the requirements and conditions of any 
applicable use permit or variance approval. 

B.    Determination. If the Director determines that the proposed use or building is allowed as a 
matter of right by this title, and conforms to all the applicable development and use standards, 
the Director shall issue a zoning clearance. An approved zoning clearance may include 
attachments of other written or graphic information, including but not limited to statements, 
numeric data, site plans, floor plans and building elevations and sections, as a record of the 
proposal’s conformity with the applicable regulations of this title. 

C. Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency . When applicable, Zoning clearance for 
any proposed development, alteration or change of use that is subject to the ALUCP shall 

74

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanCarlos/#!/SanCarlos18/SanCarlos1827.html#18.27.020


PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF SAN CARLOS ZONING ORDINANCE FOR ALUC REVIEW  
Version August 21, 2023 
 

5 
 

include applicability determination of Section 18.21.150 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
Consistency. for review procedures required by San Mateo County’s Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan. Where required, the applicant shall seek a consistency determination with 
Section 18.21.150. 

CD. Exceptions. No zoning clearance shall be required for the continuation of previously 
approved or permitted uses and structures, or uses and structures that are not subject to any 
building or zoning regulations. (Ord. 1438 § 4 (Exh. A (part)), 2011) 

 

75



    
 
C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 

 
Date: September 28, 2023 
 
To: Airport Land Use Committee 
 
From: Susy Kalkin 
 
Subject: San Francisco International Airport Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility 

Plan Consistency Review – Amendments to the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan 
to allow for uses classified as “Biotechnology Level 2” within portions of the Transit 
Oriented Development Zone north of the paseo connecting the Millbrae transit 
station and Rollins Road, south of the BART parking garage, east of Millbrae transit 
station, and west of Rollins Road, which are located within Safety Compatibility 
Zone 2. 

 
 (For further information or response to questions, contact Susy Kalkin - kkalkin@smcgov.org) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
That the C/CAG Airport Land Use Committee (ALUC) recommend to the C/CAG Board of 
Directors, that the C/CAG Board, acting as the Airport Land Use Commission, determine that the 
proposed amendments to the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan to allow for uses classified as 
“Biotechnology Level 2” within portions of the Transit Oriented Development Zone located north 
of the paseo connecting the Millbrae transit station and Rollins Road, south of the BART parking 
garage, east of Millbrae transit station, and west of Rollins Road, which are located within Safety 
Compatibility Zone 2, are not consistent with the Safety Compatibility Criteria contained in the 
Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan for the Environs of San Francisco 
International Airport (SFO ALUCP). 
 
BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL 
 
The City of Millbrae completed its Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan (MSASP) in 2015 which 
was reviewed at the time by the ALUC and determined to be conditionally compatible with the SFO 
ALUCP.    
 
In 2020/21, Millbrae submitted proposed amendments to the MSASP for a determination of 
Consistency with the SFO ALUCP.  The proposal included various amendments to the MSASP to 
allow for uses classified as “biotechnology level 2” within portions of the specific plan area, 
including the Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Zone, south of Millbrae Avenue.  In November 
2020, the C/CAG Board (acting as the Airport Land Use Commission) adopted Resolution 20-57, 
determining that the amendments were not consistent with the Safety Compatibility Criteria of the 
SFO ALUCP.  The City of Millbrae subsequently adopted findings in favor of overruling the 
ALUC action pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 21676 (c) and approved the amendments.   
 
In 2022, the Millbrae undertook a similar amendment to allow biotechnology level 2 use within 
additional areas of the MSASP, including portions of the TOD Zone located east of El Camino 

Item 8 

76



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – Millbrae MSASP Amendment  
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 2  
 
Real, with of the railroad corridor and north of Millbrae Avenue, which are located within Safety 
Zone 2.   The ALUC found these amendments inconsistent with the SFO ALUCP and the City of 
Millbrae adopted findings overruling the ALUC determination. 
 
Millbrae is now considering a further amendment to the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan to 
allow for uses classified as “biotechnology level 2”, including Biotechnology/Scientific Labs, 
Tech/Biotech Product Assembly, and Tech/Biotech Component Manufacturing, in a portion the 
Transit Oriented Development zone located north of the paseo connecting the Millbrae transit 
station and Rollins Road, south of the BART parking garage, east of Millbrae transit station, and 
west of Rollins Road, which are located within Safety Compatibility Zone 2.  
 
Since the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan properties are located within Airport Influence Area 
(AIA) B for San Francisco International Airport, the area subject to formal CCAG/ALUC review, 
in accordance with the requirements of California Public Utilities Code Section 21676(b), the City 
of Millbrae has referred the proposal to C/CAG, acting as the San Mateo County Airport Land Use 
Commission, for a determination of consistency with the SFO ALUCP.   
 
DISCUSSION  

SFO ALUCP Consistency Evaluation 
 
The SFO ALUCP includes policies regarding establishment of: A) an Airport Influence Area, with 
related real estate disclosure requirements and Airport Land Use Commission review authority; B) 
noise compatibility policies and criteria; C) safety policies and criteria; and D) airspace protection 
policies.  As the proposed Amendments do not involve noise sensitive uses and do not alter 
development standards, this review will focus on Safety Compatibility issues only. 

 
C) Safety Policy Consistency Analysis – The overall objective of safety compatibility guidelines 

is to minimize the risks associated with potential aircraft accidents.  The most fundamental 
safety compatibility component is to provide for the safety of people and property on the ground 
in the event of an aircraft accident near an airport. 

 
The SFO ALUCP includes five sets of safety zones and identifies land uses which are either 
incompatible or should be avoided within each of these zones.  As shown on Attachment 2, the 
properties impacted by the proposed amendments lie within Safety Zone 2, the Inner 
Approach/Departure Zone (IADZ). 

 
Per the SFO ALUCP, the compatibility criteria for safety are established in Table IV-2, 
included as Attachment 3.  As shown, Hazardous Uses are incompatible within Safety Zone 2.  
 
Hazardous Uses are further clarified in Safety Policy SP-3, included as Attachment 4, with 
relevant text excerpted below: 
 
“D. Medical and biological research facilities handling highly toxic or infectious agents  

77



C/CAG AGENDA REPORT 
Airport Land Use Committee 
RE:  Consistency Review – Millbrae MSASP Amendment  
Date:  September 28, 2023 
Page 3  
 

These facilities are classified by “Biosafety Levels.” Biosafety Level 1 does not involve 
hazardous materials and is not subject to the restrictions on hazardous uses in Table IV-2. 
Definitions of the other three biosafety levels are quoted from Biosafety in Microbiological and 
Biomedical Laboratories, below. 
 
a. Biosafety Level 2 practices, equipment, and facility design and construction are applicable 

to clinical, diagnostic, teaching, and other laboratories in which work is done with the 
broad spectrum of indigenous moderate-risk agents that are present in the community and 
associated with human disease of varying severity. 

b. Biosafety Level 3 practices, safety equipment, and facility design and construction are 
applicable to clinical, diagnostic, teaching, research, or production facilities in which work 
is done with indigenous or exotic agents with a potential for respiratory transmission, and 
which may cause serious and potentially lethal infection. 

c. Biosafety Level 4 practices, safety equipment, and facility design and construction are 
applicable for work with dangerous and exotic agents that pose a high individual risk of 
life-threatening disease, which may be transmitted via the aerosol route and for which 
there is no available vaccine or therapy.” 

 
As noted in the Proposal above, the amendments specifically request the ability to include 
hazardous uses within Safety Compatibility Zone 2 in order to accommodate Biosafety Level 2 
uses, in direct conflict with the Safety Policies of the SFO ALUCP and are therefore not consistent 
with these policies. 
 
 
SFO Planning 
 
Pursuant to standard practice, the project was referred to SFO Planning staff for review, who 
provided detailed comments, included as Attachment 5.  In summary, they note objection to the 
amendments as inconsistent with the SFO ALUCP Safety Policies, believe they would pose an 
unreasonable safety hazard by exposing residents and businesses in Millbrae to greater harm in the 
event of an aircraft emergency, and recommend that the ALUC determine that the proposed 
amendments are incompatible with the SFO ALUCP.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Application Materials 
2. SFO ALUCP Exh. IV-9 Safety Compatibility Zones 
3. SFO ALUCP Table IV-2 Safety Compatibility Criteria 
4. SFO ALUCP Policy SP-3 Hazardous Uses 
5. Comment letter from SFO Planning dated September 13, 2023 

78



APPLICATION FOR LAND USE CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION
San Mateo County Airport Land Use Commission 

C/CAG ALUC

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Agency: City of Millbrae

Project Name: Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan Amendment 

Address: 621 Magnolia Avenue APN: Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan Area

City: Millbrae State: California ZIP Code: 94030

Staff Contact: Nestor Guevara Phone: 650-259-2335 Email: nguevara@ci.millbrae.ca.us

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project consists of an amendment to the Millbrae Station Area Specific Plan to 1) allow 
Biotechnology/Scientific Labs, Tech/Biotech Product Assembly, and Tech/Biotech Component 
Manufacturing, including hazardous uses classified as Biosafety Level 2, with a Conditional Use 
Permit in the Transit Oriented Development zone portion located north of the paseo connecting 
the Millbrae transit station and Rollins Road as shown on Figure 4-5 of the Millbrae Station 
Area Specific Plan, south of the BART parking garage, east of Millbrae transit station, and west 
of Rollins Road, above the ground floor except for  minor ancillary uses as determined by the 
community development director, within the Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport Safety Compatibility Zone 2 and 2) 
clarify that industrial and office uses are permitted in the Public Facilities zoning district.

REQUIRED PROJECT INFORMATION

For General Plan, Specific Plan or Zoning Amendments and Development Projects: 

A copy of the relevant amended sections, maps, etc., together with a detailed description of the proposed 
changes, sufficient to provide the following: 

1. Adequate information to establish the relationship of the project to the three areas of Airport Land Use
compatibility concern (ex. a summary of the planning documents and/or project development materials
describing how ALUCP compatibility issues are addressed):

a) Noise: Location of project/plan area in relation to the noise contours identified in the applicable ALUCP.

- Identify any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 
ALUCP noise policies. 

b) Safety: Location of project/plan area in relation to the safety zones identified in the applicable ALUCP.

- Include any relevant citations/discussion included in the project/plan addressing compliance with 
ALUCP safety policies. 

c) Airspace Protection:

- Include relevant citations/discussion of allowable heights in relation to the protected airspace/proximity 
to airport, as well as addressment of any land uses or design features that may cause visual, electronic, 

Attachment 1

79



navigational, or wildlife hazards, particularly bird strike hazards. 
- If applicable, identify how property owners are advised of the need to submit Form 7460-1, Notice of 
Proposed /Construction or Alteration with the FAA. 

2. Real Estate Disclosure requirements related to airport proximity

3. Any related environmental documentation (electronic copy preferred)

4. Other documentation as may be required (ex. related staff reports, etc.)

Additional information For Development Projects: 

1. 25 sets of scaled plans, no larger than 11” x 17” 
2. Latitude and longitude of development site
3. Building heights relative to mean sea level (MSL)

ALUCP Plans can be accessed at http://ccag.ca.gov/plansreportslibrary/airport-land-use/ 

Please contact C/CAG staff at 650 599-1467 with any questions. 

For C/CAG Staff Use Only 
Date Application Received 
Date Application Deemed 
Complete 
Tentative Hearing Dates: 

- Airport Land Use 
Committee 

- C/CAG ALUC 

C/CAG ALUC 12/18 
80



81



City Council Adoption of Update

February 9, 2016- Resolution No. 16-03 adopted by the City Council

List of Amendments and Resolution Dates

April 9, 2019- Resolution No. 19-36 adopted by the City Council

January 12, 2021 - Resolution No. 21-08 adopted by the City Council

September 15, 2021- Resolution No. 21-60 adopted by the City Council

October 26, 2021 - Resolution No. 21-74 adopted by the City Council 

October 11, 2022 - Resolution No. 22-73 adopted by the City Council

January 24, 2023 - Resolution No. 23-11 adopted by the City Council

82



M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  C O N C E P T S  A N D  P O L I C I E S 4.2

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD)
The Specific Plan envisions a wide variety of uses in 
areas closest to the Millbrae BART/Caltrain Station 
(Millbrae Station), including the current BART 
parking lots, that take advantage of station proximity. 
Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) is a compact, 
walkable, high-density mixed-use residential and 
commercial area located within one-quarter to one-
half mile of a transit station, incorporating features 
to encourage transit use throughout the day such 
as a mix of uses, high-quality pedestrian and 
bicycle access, narrow streets, and reduced parking 
requirements.  Development for this area includes 
land use types such as residential, office, hotel, 
and ground-floor retail. The Specific Plan promotes 
the integration of these uses on individual sites 
and within single projects. All new development 
will prioritize access to transit. The integration of 
residential and employment uses will ensure that 
there is activity in the station area during the day 
and in the evenings.

Residential Mixed Use 
The El Camino Real corridor is envisioned as a 
mixed-use corridor that primarily consists of multi-
family residential development above ground floor 
retail and service uses within individual buildings, 
continuing the pattern of recent development along 
the corridor. The El Camino Real corridor will also 
function as a bridge between the existing residential 
uses west of the Plan Area and new intensive uses 
in the Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) area. 
Additional residential uses on El Camino Real will 

complement Downtown businesses without adding 
extensive vehicle trips and will provide additional life 
to central Millbrae.

Retail Center
In the southeast quadrant of the Plan Area, the 
existing retail center (Wilson Plaza) will retain its 
commercial character and extend farther to the east 
to provide additional retail shopping, services, and 
dining opportunities that are appropriate for this 
freeway-proximate area. 

Employment Center / Light Industrial
The area south of Adrian Road will accommodate 
office uses in new Class A buildings as well as 
employment-generating light industrial uses that 
can take advantage of freeway proximity and transit 
service, and add valued economic development 
benefits. Light industrial uses shall include 
research and development (R&D), STEM (science, 
technology, engineering, and math), tech/biotech 
manufacturing, and high-tech services that involve 
a combination of assembling, warehousing, and/
or sales. New housing development in the nearby 
TOD area will create opportunities for employees 
to live close to their workplaces, which is attractive 
to employers and creates further opportunities for 
walking and bicycling to work.

Hotels
Hotels are envisioned in locations that take 
advantage of freeway frontage, airport proximity, and 
transit access. Hotels will benefit both visitors and 
local residents and also complement nearby retail 

and office uses. Hotels will provide a meeting place, 
as well as a place for special events, conferences, 
or banquets. Hotels will also diversify activities 
in the area, providing activity during the daytime 
and nighttime hours with lesser peak-hour traffic 
impacts. Hotels should be allowed flexibility and 
may be appropriate in TOD, Residential Mixed-
Use, Retail Center, and Employment Center/Light 
Industrial areas.

Public Facilities
Public Facilities are proposed to be used as industrial 
and office uses associated with public facilities. 
The area directly west of Highway 101 and north 
of Millbrae is restricted for development due to 
airport runway safety issues. As the Specific Plan 
is implemented, the area should be landscaped at 
its edges to provide for an attractive entry to the 
City from Highway 101. Potential uses for the area 
include stormwater treatment facilities (bio retention 
swales). The Wastewater Treatment Facility, shown 
in green, is proposed to continue its use as a public 
facility.

Multi-Family Residential Overlay
As shown in Figure 4-1, the triangular-shaped area 
just north of the BART parking garage and south of 
the Bayside Manor neighborhood is envisioned for 
land uses that would provide a suitable land use 
transition between the BART station and the Bayside 
Manor neighborhood, including a city storage yard, 
parking, and/or multi-family residential uses.

83



M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  L A N D  U S E  R E G U L A T I O N S  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S T A N D A R D S 

Residential Overlay Zone
The Residential Overlay Zone is intended to 
accommodate multi-family homes, with the provision 
of housing available to people of all incomes, in 
close proximity to the Millbrae Station, including 
townhomes, apartments, and condominiums, that 
thoughtfully transition in scale to the Bayside Manor 
neighborhood to the north. 

5.2

5.1. PLANNING ZONES AND OVERLAY 
ZONE

As shown in Figure 5-1, the Plan Area is divided into 
five Planning Zones with one Overlay Zone, which 
are based off of the Land Use Plan and concepts 
described in Chapter 4. Overlay Zone regulations 
shall be applied in addition to those in the underlying 
base zone.

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Zone
This Zone supports a variety of uses at higher 
intensities in order to create a vibrant day and 
evening activity center immediately adjacent to 
the Millbrae Station. In order to make the higher 
intensities of TOD enjoyable and convenient, all TOD 
developments shall have a mix of uses. Life science 
laboratories and office uses are limited to the TOD 
zone portions located 1) south of Millbrae Avenue, 
2) north of Millbrae Avenue, south of the MSASP
Boundary, east of El Camino Real, and west of the 
Railroad and 3) north of the paseo connecting the 
Millbrae transit station and Rollins Road as shown 
on Figure 4-5 of the Millbrae Station Area Specific 
Plan, south of the BART parking garage, east of 
Millbrae transit station, and west of Rollins Road, 
above the ground floor except for  minor ancillary 
uses as determined by the Community Development 
Director.

Residential Mixed Use Zone
The El Camino Real corridor, except for the area 
immediately west of the Millbrae Station, is 
designated Residential Mixed Use. This Zone 
accommodates and encourages medium- to high-
density residential development above ground floor 
retail uses that face El Camino Real. Land use 
regulations and standards for this zone are also 
intended to ensure an appropriate transition in use 
and scale between new high density development 
in the TOD Zone and the existing single family 
residential neighborhoods to the west.

Employment Center / Light Industrial Zone
This Zone is intended to promote the development 
of an employment-oriented corridor with new Class 
A office buildings and light industrial uses that front 
Adrian Road. 

Retail Commercial Zone
The Retail Commercial Zone is intended to retain and 
enhance existing retail and shopping development 
close to Highway 101. 

Public Facilities Zone
This Zone is applied to portions of the Plan Area that 
are reserved for industrial and office utility-related 
uses or public services, including a City storage 
yard, and parking. 

84



EL CAM
INO REAL

EL CAM
INO REAL

MILLBRAE AVEMILLBRAE AVE

AVIADOR AVE

AVIADOR AVE

CUARDO AVE

BEVERLY AVE

HEM
LOCK AVE

ADRIAN RD

BRODERICK RD

ADRIAN RD

M
CDONNELL RD

OLD BAYSHORE HW
Y

CHADBOURNE AVE

VICTORIA AVE

LA CRUZ AVE

CALIFORNIA DRS IRW
IN PL

ROLLINS RD

ROLLINS RD

BROADW
AY

BROADW
AY

M
AGNOLIA AVE

M
AGNOLIA AVE

ACCESS RD

LEW
IS AVE

MURCHISON DR

M

RACCEACCESS RDDDRESSSCCCACACCC

DRDRD

A

N

65 dba CNEL

70 dba CNEL 75 dba CNEL

65 dba
CNEL

70 dba CNEL

75 dba CNEL

MURCHISON DR

NENEL

NEL

HIGHLINE CANAL

SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

RUNWAYS

Millbrae
BART/Caltrain

Station

BART Parking 
Structure

C
altrain

P
arking

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 2

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 2

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 2

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 2

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 2

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 2

SFO SAFETY C
OMPATIBILITY ZONE 1

SFO SAFETY C
OMPATIBILITY ZONE 1

SFO SAFETY C
OMPATIBILITY ZONE 1

SFO SAFETY C
OMPATIBILITY ZONE 3

SFO SAFETY C
OMPATIBILITY ZONE 3

SFO SAFETY C
OMPATIBILITY ZONE 3

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 3

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 3

SFO SAFETY COMPATIBILITY ZONE 3

Feet
0 500’250’

PF

PF

R 
PF    

TOD 

TODRMU

RMU
RC

EMPLOYMENT CENTER /
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

EVE

Y

MSASP Boundary

City Boundary

Power Lines

Planning Zones 

SFO Safety Compatibility Zones 

Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Zone

Residential Mixed Use (RMU) Zone Public Facilities (PF) Zone

Employment Center / Light Industrial Zone

Retail Commercial (RC) Zone
Overlay Zone 

Residential OverlayR

SFO Noise Compability Zones

5.3M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  L A N D  U S E  R E G U L A T I O N S  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S T A N D A R D S 

FIGURE 5-1. Planning and Overlay Zones

85



5.4 M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  L A N D  U S E  R E G U L A T I O N S  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S T A N D A R D S 

5.2. LAND USE REGULATIONS
Table 5-1 indicates the land uses that are permitted, conditionally permitted, and prohibited within each Planning or Overlay Zone. As described above, Overlay Zone 
land use regulations shall be applied in addition to those in the underlying base zone. Other uses not identified in Table 5-1 that are deemed consistent with the spirit 
and intent of the underlying land use designation shall be given Director consideration and approved at Director discretion or deferred to the Planning Commission. 

TABLE 5-12. PERMITTED AND CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED LAND USES 
Permitted (P)
Conditional (C)
Not allowed (-)
Permitted when part of mixed use building (*)

TOD Residential Mixed 
Use

Employment 
Center / Light 

Industrial

Residential 
Overlay Retail Commercial Public Facilities

Residential Uses 

Duplexes - - - P - -

Live/Work Units P* P* C - - -

Multiple-Family Dwellings

 Less than 7 Units - - - P - -

 7 Units or More P* P C P - -

Public and Quasi-Public Uses

Adult Education C* C* C* - C -

Community Centers [1] P P P - P -

Public Electric Vehicle Charging Station P* P* P* - P -

Library P P P - P -

Public Parks and Recreational Facilities [1] P P P P P P 

Public Parking Structures P P P P P -

86



5.5M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  L A N D  U S E  R E G U L A T I O N S  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S T A N D A R D S 

Permitted (P)
Conditional (C)
Not allowed (-)
Permitted when part of mixed use building (*)

TOD Residential Mixed 
Use

Employment 
Center / Light 

Industrial

Residential 
Overlay Retail Commercial Public Facilities

Commercial Uses

Eating and Drinking Establishments

Restaurants P* P* P* - P -

Bars C* C* C* - C -

Commercial Services

Banks and Financial Services [2] P* P* P* - P* -

Business Support Services [2] P* P* P* - C* -

Child Care Services [2] [3] C* C* C* - - -

Health and Exercise Clubs (no more than 
3,000 square feet if on ground floor) [2]

P* P* P* - P* -

Medical Offices [2] P* C* C - - -

Offices [2] P P* P - - -

Personal Services P* P* P* - P* -

Light Industrial [4] [6]

Biotechnology / Scientific Labs C - C - - -

Research and Development Facility (R&D) C - P - - -

Tech / Biotech Product Assembly C - C - - -

Tech / Biotech Component Manufacturing C - C - - -

87



5.6 M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  L A N D  U S E  R E G U L A T I O N S  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S T A N D A R D S 

Permitted (P)
Conditional (C)
Not allowed (-)
Permitted when part of mixed use building (*)

TOD Residential Mixed 
Use

Employment 
Center / Light 

Industrial

Residential 
Overlay Retail Commercial Public Facilities

Retail

Drive-In and Drive-Through Facilities - - - - P -

Food and Beverage Sales (less 
than 15,000 square feet)

P* P* P* - P -

Gas and Service Stations - - - - C -

Liquor Stores C* C* - - C* -

Retail Sales P* P* P* - P -

Other Commercial Uses

Commercial Lodging C C C - C -

Conference Center [5] P* C P* - P* -

Museum P - - - - -

Theater P - - - - -

Indoor Commercial Recreation P* - - - P -

88



5.7M I L L B R A E  S T A T I O N  A R E A  S P E C I F I C  P L A N  / /  L A N D  U S E  R E G U L A T I O N S  &  D E V E L O P M E N T  S T A N D A R D S 

Permitted (P)
Conditional (C)
Not allowed (-)
Permitted when part of mixed use building (*)

TOD Residential Mixed 
Use

Employment 
Center / Light 

Industrial

Residential 
Overlay Retail Commercial Public Facilities

Transportation, Communication, and Utilities Uses

Off-Site Construction Staging C C C - C P

Wireless Communications Facilities C C C - C C

Cogeneration Facility C - - - - -

Transit Facilities P - - - - -

Utility Services C - C - C P
NOTES:
Any use that requires a Conditional Use Permit (C) goes to the Planning Commission for approval.
An asterisk (*) indicates uses allowed only when part of mixed use building.
Within SFO Safety Compatibility Zones 1 and 3, uses must comply with the ALUCP policies and criteria described in Policy SP-2, Safety Compatibility Land Use Criteria; Table IV-2, Safety Compatibility Criteria; and Policy SP-3, 
Hazardous Uses. (See pages IV-27 through IV-34 of the SFP ALUCP, November 2012, or the latest adopted Plan). Within SFO Compatibility Zone 2, Hazardous Uses up to Biosafety Level 2 may be allowed, subject to a Conditional Use
Permit, per City of Millbrae Resolution 21-08, Resolution No. 21-60, Resolution No. 23-11, and Resolution No. xx-xx within the TOD Zone and the Employment Center/Light Industrial Zone.
[1] Places of assembly seating more than 300 people are prohibited in SFO Safety Compatibility Zone 2. Places of assembly not in structure are prohibited in SFO Safety Compatibility Zone 1.
[2] Use is required to secure a Conditional Use Permit when located on the ground floor in a Type 1-Very Active Ground Floor Uses area as shown in Figure 5-4, Active Frontage Types.
[3] Large child day care centers, which are commercial facilities defined in accordance with Health and Safety Code, Section 1596.70, et seq., and licensed to serve 15 or more children, are prohibited in SFO Safety Compatibility 
Zones 2 and 3. Family day care homes and noncommercial employer-sponsored facilities ancillary to place of business are allowed in SFO Safety Compatibility Zone 3.
[4] Light Industrial facilities in Safety Compatibility Zone 2 of ALUCP may include hazardous uses up to Biosafety Level 2, as defined by the SFO ALUCP, Policy SP-3 on pages IV-33 and IV-34.
[5] Conference centers in Safety Compatibility Zone 2 of the ALUCP shall not provide seating in excess of 300 people.
[6] Biotechnology/Scientific Labs, Tech/Biotech Product Assemblv, and Tech/Biotech Component Manufacturing are allowed with a Conditional Use Permit in the TOD zone portions located 1) south of Millbrae Avenue, 2) north of 
Millbrae Avenue, south of the MSASP Boundary, east of El Camino Real, and west of the Railroad and 3) north of the paseo connecting the Millbrae transit station and Rollins Road as shown on Figure 4-5 of the Millbrae Station Area 
Specific Plan, south of the BART parking garage, east of Millbrae transit station, and west of Rollins Road, above the ground floor except for  minor ancillary uses as determined by the Community Development Director.

89



Attachment 2

90



Attachment  

T HE CIT Y/CO UNTY ASSOCIATIO N O F GO VE R NMENTS O F SAN MA T EO COUNT Y NO V EMBER 2012  

Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport 

Airport/Land Use Compatibility Policies [IV-31] 

LAND USE CRITERIA 

Zone 1: Runway Protection Zone and Object Free Area (RPZ-OFA) 

Zone 2: Inner Approach/Departure Zone (IADZ) 

Zone 3: Inner Turning Zone (ITZ) 

Zone 4: Outer Approach/Departure Zone (OADZ) 

Zone 5: Sideline Zone (SZ) 

Children’s schools2/ --- 

Large child day care facilities and noncommercial 
employer-sponsored centers ancillary to a place 
of business 

Hospitals, nursing homes 

Hazardous uses2/
 

Critical public utilities2/ 

Stadiums, arenas 

Biosafety Level 3 and 4 facilities2/

Children’s schools 2/
 

Large child day care centers 2/

Hospitals, nursing homes 

Stadiums, arenas 

Hazardous uses other than 
Biosafety Level 3 and 4 
facilities 2/

Critical public utilities2/
 

Biosafety Level 3 and 4 facilities 2/

Children’s schools 2/
 

Large child day care centers 2/

Hospitals, nursing homes 

Stadiums, arenas 

Hazardous uses other than 
Biosafety Level 3 and 4 
facilities2/

 

Critical public utilities2/
 

Children’s schools2/ --- 

Large child day care centers and noncommercial 
employer-sponsored centers ancillary to a place 
of business2/

 

Hospitals, nursing homes 

Hazardous uses2/
 

Critical public utilities2/
 

Theaters, meeting halls, places of assembly seating 
more than 300 people 

Stadiums, arenas 

All new structures3/
 

Places of assembly not in structures 

Hazardous uses2/
 

Critical public utilities2/
 

Nonresidential uses except 
very low intensity uses4/ in 
the “controlled activity 
area.” 2/

 

ZONE INCOMPATIBLE1/ AVOID1/

Table IV-2 (1 of 2) Safety Compatibility Criteria 

91



T HE CIT Y/CO UNTY ASSOCIATIO N O F GO VE R NMENTS O F SAN MA T EO COUNT Y NO V EMBER 2012  

Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport 

Airport/Land Use Compatibility Policies [IV-32] 

Notes: 

1/ Avoid: Use is not fully compatible and should not be permitted unless no feasible alternative is available. Where use is allowed, habitable structures shall be 
provided with at least 50 percent more exits than required by applicable codes. Where the 50-percent factor results in a fraction, the number of additional exits 
shall be rounded to the next highest whole number. 

Incompatible Use is not compatible in the indicated zones and cannot be permitted. 

2/ Definitions 

o Biosafety Level 3 and 4 facilities: Medical and biological research facilities involving the storage and processing of extremely toxic or infectious agents. 
See Policy SP-3 for additional detail. 

o Children’s schools:  Public and private schools serving preschool through grade 12, excluding commercial services. 

o Controlled Activity Area: The lateral edges of the RPZ, outside the Runway Safety Area (RSA) and the extension of the RSA, which extends to the outer edge of the 
RPZ.  See FAA Advisory Circular 150/5300-13, Airport Design, Section 212a.(1)(b). 

o Critical public utilities: Facilities that, if disabled by an aircraft accident, could lead to public safety or health emergencies. They include the following: 
electrical power generation plants, electrical substations, wastewater treatment plants, and public water treatment facilities. 

o Hazardous uses: Uses involving the manufacture, storage, or processing of flammable, explosive ,or toxic materials that would substantially aggravate 
the consequences of an aircraft accident. See Policy SP-3 for additional detail. 

o Large child day care centers: Commercial facilities defined in accordance with Health and Safety Code, Section 1596.70, et seq., and licensed to serve 15 
or more children. Family day care homes and noncommercial employer-sponsored facilities ancillary to place of business are allowed. 

3/ Structures serving specific aeronautical functions are allowed, in compliance with applicable FAA design standards. 

4/ Examples include parking lots and outdoor equipment storage. 

SOURCE:    Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2012. 
PREPARED BY:    Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2012. 

ZONE 2 -- INNER APPROACH/DEPARTURE ZONE (IADZ) 
In Zone 2, the IADZ, a variety of uses that involve hazardous materials, critical public utilities, theaters, meeting halls, 
places of assembly seating more than 300 people, stadiums, arenas, and those accommodating potentially vulnerable 
populations – such as children’s schools, child day care facilities, hospitals, and nursing homes – are incompatible. 

ZONE 3 -- INNER TURNING ZONE (ITZ) 
The compatibility criteria in Zone 3, the ITZ, are somewhat less restrictive than in Zone 2. This is because the area is 
subject to less accident risk by virtue of the lower density of overflights in this area. In Zone 3, stadiums, arenas, and 
uses accommodating potentially vulnerable populations are incompatible. Hazardous uses and critical public utilities are 
not incompatible in Zone 3, but are classified as uses to be avoided. This means that they should not be permitted 
unless no feasible alternative is available. 

ZONE 4 - OUTER APPROACH/DEPARTURE ZONE (OADZ) 
The compatibility criteria in Zone 4,the OADZ, are the same as in Zone 3. 

Table IV-2 (2 of 2) Safety Compatibility Criteria 

92



Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport 

Airport/Land Use Compatibility Policies [IV-33] 

Attachment  

T HE CIT Y/CO UNTY ASSOCIATIO N O F GO VE R NMENTS O F SAN MA T EO COUNT Y NO V EMBER 2012  

ZONE 5 – SIDELINE ZONE (SZ) 
The compatibility criteria in Zone 5 are the same as those in Zone 2. 

SP-3 HAZARDOUS USES 
Hazardous uses, facilities involving the manufacture, processing, or storage of hazardous materials, can 
pose serious risks to the public in case of aircraft accidents.  Hazardous materials of particular concern 
in this ALUCP, and which are covered by the safety compatibility criteria in Table IV-2, are the 
following: 

A. Aboveground fuel storage — This includes storage tanks with capacities greater than 10,000 
gallons of any substance containing at least 5 percent petroleum.11 Project sponsors must provide 
evidence of compliance with all applicable regulations prior to the issuance of development permits. 

B. Facilities where toxic substances are manufactured, processed or stored — Proposed 
land use projects involving the manufacture or storage of toxic substances may be allowed if the 
amounts of the substances do not exceed the threshold planning quantities for hazardous and 
extremely hazardous substances specified by the EPA.12

 

C. Explosives and fireworks manufacturing and storage — Proposed land use projects 
involving the manufacture or storage of explosive materials may be allowed in safety zones only in 
compliance with the applicable regulations of the California Division of Occupational Safety and 
Health (Section 5252, Table EX-1). Project sponsors must provide evidence of compliance with 
applicable state regulations prior to the issuance of any development permits.13

 

D. Medical and biological research facilities handling highly toxic or infectious agents — 
These facilities are classified by “Biosafety Levels.” 14 Biosafety Level 1 does not involve hazardous 
materials and is not subject to the restrictions on hazardous uses in Table IV-2. Definitions of the 
other three biosafety levels are quoted from Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories, 
below.15

 

a. Biosafety Level 2 practices, equipment, and facility design and construction are applicable
to clinical, diagnostic, teaching, and other laboratories in which work is done with the
broad spectrum of indigenous moderate-risk agents that are present in the community

11 State of California, California Health and Safety Code, Section 25270 (Aboveground Petroleum Storage Act). 

12 Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 355, Subpart D, Appendices A & B. 

13  California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Subchapter 7 General Industry Safety Orders, Group 18 Explosives and Pyrotechnics, Article 114 Storage of 
Explosives. 

14 Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories, 5th Edition, 2009, published by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services in 
concert with the Public Health Service, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and National Institutes of Health, or any successor 
publication. 

15 Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories, 5th Edition, 2009, published by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services in 
concert with the Public Health Service, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and National Institutes of Health, pp. 25-26. 

93



Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

for the Environs of San Francisco International Airport 

Airport/Land Use Compatibility Policies [IV-34] 

T HE CIT Y/CO UNTY ASSOCIATIO N O F GO VE R NMENTS O F SAN MA T EO COUNT Y NO V EMBER 2012  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

4.5 Airspace Protection 
 

 

 
The compatibility of proposed land uses with respect to airspace protection shall be evaluated in accordance with the 
policies set forth in this section. These policies are established with a twofold purpose: 

 
1. To protect the public health, safety, and welfare by minimizing the public’s exposure to potential safety 
hazards that could be created through the construction of tall structures. 

2. To protect the public interest in providing for the orderly development of SFO by ensuring that new 
development in the Airport environs avoids compromising the airspace in the Airport vicinity. This avoids the 
degradation in the safety, utility, efficiency, and air service capability of the Airport that could be caused by the 
attendant need to raise visibility minimums, increase minimum rates of climb, or cancel, restrict, or redesign flight 
procedures. 

4.5.1 FEDERAL REGULATIONS REGARDING TALL STRUCTURES 

14 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 77, Safe, Efficient Use and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace, governs the 
FAA’s review of proposed construction exceeding certain height limits, defines airspace obstruction criteria, and 
provides for FAA aeronautical studies of proposed construction. Appendix F describes the FAA airspace review 
process and the extent of FAA authority related to airspace protection. 

 
4.5.2 PART 77, SUBPART B, NOTIFICATION PROCESS 

Federal regulations require any person proposing to build a new structure or alter an existing structure with a height 
that would exceed the elevations described in CFR Part 77, Subpart B, Section 77.9, to prepare an FAA Form 7460-1, 
Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, and submit the notice to the FAA. The regulations apply to buildings and 
other structures or portions of structures, such as mechanical equipment, flag poles, and other projections that may 
exceed the aforementioned elevations. 

and associated with human disease of varying severity. 

 
b. Biosafety Level 3 practices, safety equipment, and facility design and construction are 

applicable to clinical, diagnostic, teaching, research, or production facilities in which work 
is done with indigenous or exotic agents with a potential for respiratory transmission, and 
which may cause serious and potentially lethal infection. 

 
c. Biosafety Level 4 practices, safety equipment, and facility design and construction are 

applicable for work with dangerous and exotic agents that pose a high individual risk of 
life-threatening disease, which may be transmitted via the aerosol route and for which 
there is no available vaccine or therapy. 

94



�
�
�
����������	
����
�
�
������������ ������������ �������!�"�!#�
$%&'����((� �������)��*+,-.,�+�
'���/',�����$��,*����,��,(�0,-���������,(�����1���,�',�����
222�',�����'�������2�3�4�,,��
5�67,,6�'�����'���(,�����89:
�
�
�;<=>?@A� �BC�DEBC?FG?H��C@>ECB@FHCBI��FEJHE@KG�"<=>?@FHC�@H�@L>�MF@N�HO��FII<EB>KG�PEHJHG>Q�

�R>CQR>C@�@H�@L>��FII<EB>��@B@FHC��E>B��J>?FOF?�PIBC�
�
S3�����,��(,���3��,��,��������(,������4���*��*,�T��������,����$���,���U�4V�,���3��$���,��W��,�*,������,��
�3��'����,(�1�������X��U'���W���,�,��6�����6������,��3��1�������������,��$�������*�(�*�Y����U1�$�YW��,�
�Z���6��3����������73�*3�3�[��6,������6������*�����(��6����\�,��(����%�-������������,7�6�7��3����3��$���,��X��
��(����',������������],����̂�T�����$���,�*3/_���������],���U��(����],����W.�̀�������*������3���
,��,���������,�*,,�6������7��3��3��$���,���%��6�&���',������,��U$%&'W�����-�������+��3����,�,��6�
����6����.�
�
_����,��3��'���X�����-�,���,-����6���,(��3��$%&'X��6����������,���,(���*,������������(,�����6�����
6���+����,�������3��1�$�Y���3��1�$�Y�*������������,7��\�,��(����%�-��������6������7��3����3��S������a
V������6�_�-��,������],���USV_�],��W���6��3��b���,������'�����/%�+3��T�6��������],�����,�3�,(�73�*3�
����7��3�����(����],����.�S3����,�,��6�����6�����7,��6��Z���6��3�������7��3����3��SV_�],������73�*3�
\�,��(����%�-��������6�������������,7�6.����*�(�*�������3����,�,��6�����6�����7,��6����,7��3,������6������
����3��������,��3�,(��3������,�*,���*���+��3��1��������T�����,6��������,����6�5,������5,�6�������,(��3��
1��������T�����,6��������,����,��3�,(��3��\$5S�������+�+���+�����6�7����,(�5,������5,�6�U������6a6��3�6�
�,Z�,����+����,(��3������*3����W.�S3��\�,��(����%�-��������6����������3��������7,��6����������6��,��3��(�,,���
��,-���3��+�,��6�(�,,���7��3����,����*���������������,7�6�,���3��+�,��6�(�,,�����6��������6�����3��1��������
',��������_�-��,������_���*�,�.�
�
Y,��*���Ya
�Uc�[��6,���&���W�,(��3��defghfi�jklm�nop�qhrgkieseteiu�vtkl�whf�ixp�ylzefhlo�hw�{kl�|fkl}eo}h�
~lipflkiehlkt�defghfi�U$%&'YW����*�(�*�������,3��������6�*�����6���,�,+�*���������*3�(�*��������3��6���+�
3�+3����,Z�*�,����(�*��,����+������73�*3���*��6�����6������*�����(��6����\�,��(����%�-������
����6�9��7��3���
��(����],����.�S3����,�,��6�����6������,��Z���6��3��*,�6���,�������,7��*��,(�\�,��(����%�-��������6������
7��3�����(����],����������*,���������7��3��3��$%&'Y���6��,�������������,�����������*���(����3�[��6����
�Z�,���+�����6�������6���������������1���������,�+��������,��������3��������3���-����,(�������*��(���**�6���.�
S3��$���,�����*,����6���3����3��$%&'�6����������3����3����,�,��6�����6����������*,���������7��3��3��
$%&'Y.�
�
�3,��6��3��$%&'�6����������3����3����,�,��6�����6����������*,���������7��3��3��$%&'Y���3��'��������
*3,,����,�,-����6���3��$%&'�6����������,��������7,a�3��6��-,���,(��3��'����',��*��.�Y��,���,���'����',��*���
3�����+�,���3����,�,��6�����6�������3��Y������+�',������,����������������*,����6���,���,��3��'����
',��*��.�T����6��(�����,����,��(,���3��$�+����������
�Y������+�',������,��3�����+���3��'������*��6�6��3��
(,��,7��+�(��6��+���������,���,(���Y������+�',������,�����,����,����*,����6��+��3����3��'����',��*���
�6,����3����,�,��6�����6����̂�
�

��4��6��+���,(��3��6��(�����,����,����������3�����3���6,���,��,(��3��$���6�����7�����,�����6�����������

�,��3�������*�3����3����(�������6�+�������7��(���.���,��-�6��*�������,-�6�6��,������(���3���(��6��+.�

��������������������������������������������������������� 

Attachment 5

95



��������	
�������
�������������������
������������
�

�� !"#!"$�%�&'�()*�#+,'(�+*-&./(!&"�-(,(*-�(),(�0()*�1!(2�),-�3&"-!#*+*#�()*�4&(*"(!,.�!54,3(-�&'�,..&6!"$�

-/3)�.!'*�-3!*"3*�&''!3*�,"#�.,7&+,(&+2�/-*-8�-/3)�,-�"&!-*8�,!+�9/,.!(28�6,(*+�9/,.!(28�),:,+#&/-�

5,(*+!,.-8�,"#�7!&.&$!3,.�+*-&/+3*-�;�<,"#=�),-�#*(*+5!"*#�(),(�()*+*�!-�5!"!5,.�+!->�,--&3!,(*#�6!()�

,..&6!"$�-/3)�/-*-�/"#*+�()*�4+&4&-*#�?@A@B�A5*"#5*"(CD�E&�*F!#*"3*�!-�4+&F!#*#�(&�G/-(!'2�()!-�

'!"#!"$C�

�� !"#!"$�H�"&(*-�(),(�()*�4+&4&-*#�,5*"#5*"(�6&/.#�"&(�+*-/.(�!"�,�-,'*(2�),:,+#�7*3,/-*�0()*�/-*-�

,+*�,.+*,#2�,..&6*#�6!()!"�()*�@(,(!&"�A+*,CD�I)!-�'!"#!"$�!-�',3(/,..2�!"3&++*3(C�@,'*(2�J&"*-�,+*�

#*'!"*#�*54!+!3,..2�7,-*#�&"�)!-(&+!3,.�+*3&+#-�&'�3+,-)*-�"*,+�,!+4&+(�+/"6,2-C�K"3+*,-!"$�()*�,+*,�

6!()!"�@,'*(2�J&"*�L�6)*+*�M!&-,'*(2�N*F*.�L�.,"#�/-*-�,+*�4*+5!((*#�6&/.#�!"3+*,-*�+!->�72�

#*'!"!(!&"�7*3,/-*�()*�4+&4&+(!&"�&'�@,'*(2�J&"*�L�&33/4!*#�72�),:,+#&/-�/-*-�6&/.#�!"3+*,-*C�

�
A-�#!-3/--*#�,7&F*8�ANO1B�B&.!32�@BPQ�-4*3!'!3,..2�4+&)!7!(-�.,"#�/-*-�(),(�!"F&.F*�()*�),"#.!"$�&'�)!$).2�
(&R!3�&+�!"'*3(!&/-�,$*"(-�6!()!"�@,'*(2�J&"*�LC� /+()*+5&+*8�()*����
����
��
���������S����������
���
T��S���	8�4/7.!-)*#�72�()*�1,.(+,"-�U!F!-!&"�&'�A*+&",/(!3-8�4+&F!#*-�4&.!32�$/!#,"3*�'&+�!54.*5*"(,(!&"�
&'�()*�ANO1B�,"#�"&(*-�(),(�05,"/',3(/+!"$8�-(&+,$*8�&+�/-*�&'�),:,+#&/-�5,(*+!,.-�5,2�6,++,"(�-4*3!,.�
3&"-!#*+,(!&"�#*4*"#!"$�/4&"�()*�-4*3!'!3�5,(*+!,.-�,"#�9/,"(!(!*-C�I)*�3&"3*+"�!-�6)*()*+�,"�,!+3+,'(�
,33!#*"(�3&/.#�3,/-*�,"�*R4.&-!&"�&+�+*.*,-*�&'�(&R!3�5,(*+!,.-8�()/-�4&-!"$�#,"$*+-�(&�()*�"*,+72�4&4/.,(!&"�
;�@4*3!'!3,..28�.&3,(!&"-�6)*+*�()*�5,"/',3(/+!"$�&+�7/.>�-(&+,$*�&'�),:,+#&/-�5,(*+!,.-�-)&/.#�7*�,F&!#*#�
!"3./#*�-,'*(2�:&"*-�&"*�()+&/$)�'!F*CDV�I)*�1!(2W-�4+&4&-*#�'!"#!"$-�,+*�"&(�3&"-!-(*"(�6!()�
ANO1B�B&.!32�@BPQ�&+�()*����
����
��
���������S����������
���T��S���	�,"#�,+*�"&(�-/44&+(*#�72�
*F!#*"3*�#*5&"-(+,(!"$�(),(�,..&6!"$�M!&-,'*(2�N*F*.�L�.,"#�/-*-�6!()!"�@,'*(2�J&"*�L�6&/.#�"&(�4&-*�,"�
/",33*4(,7.*�+!->�(&�4/7.!3�-,'*(2C�
�
I)*�A!+4&+(�#&*-�"&(�&7G*3(�(&�M!&-,'*(2�N*F*.�L�.,"#�/-*-�!"�,+*,-�(),(�-4*3!'!3,..2�3,(*+�(&�,"#�4+&F!#*�
,44+&4+!,(*�3&"(,!"5*"(�'&+�(),(�(24*�&'�+*-*,+3)C�X&6*F*+8�-/3)�.,"#�/-*-�,+*�"&(�-/!(,7.*�,(�()*�*"#-�&'�
+/"6,2-�,"#�-)&/.#�7*�-!(*#�',+()*+�,6,2�'+&5�()*�,+*,-�"*,+�()*�A!+4&+(�(),(�),F*�7**"�!#*"(!'!*#�72�
*54!+!3,.�+*-*,+3)�,-�4&-!"$�,"�/",33*4(,7.*�+!->C�K'�()*�1!(2�&F*++!#*-�()*�ANO1�#*(*+5!",(!&"8�()*�A!+4&+(�
6!..�7*�!55/"*�'+&5�.!,7!.!(2�'&+�#,5,$*-�+*-/.(!"$�#!+*3(.2�&+�!"#!+*3(.2�'+&5�,..&6!"$�M!&-,'*(2�N*F*.�L�
.,"#�/-*-�!"�@,'*(2�J&"*�LCL�I)*�1!(2�-)&/.#�3,+*'/..2�3&"-!#*+�()*�)*,.()8�-,'*(28�,"#�6*..P7*!"$�&'�!(-�
3!(!:*"-�!"�()*�*F*"(�&'�,"�,!+3+,'(�,33!#*"(�!"�@,'*(2�J&"*�LC�
�

Y�Y�Y�
�
I)*�A!+4&+(�,44+*3!,(*-�2&/+�3&"-!#*+,(!&"�&'�()*-*�3&55*"(-C�K'�K�3,"�7*�&'�,--!-(,"3*8�4.*,-*�#&�"&(�
)*-!(,(*�(&�3&"(,3(�5*�,(�Z%[\]�̂LVP%%Ĥ�&+�,(�"/4/+C-!"),_'.2-'&C3&5C�
� �

�
V�1,.(+,"-�U!F!-!&"�&'�A*+&",/(!3-8����
����
��
���������S����������
���T��S���	8�̀3(&7*+�L\VV8�4C�aPQ\C�
L�1,.C�B/7C�O(!.C�1&#*�b�LV%ĤC�

cdefghij�kjlmndom�pcq�rstkuvwxyztusy{kc|yutk{y}ss}vu{uzwt~

96



��������	
�������
�������������������
������������
�
� !"#$#%&'�
�
�
�
�
�
()*)$�� !+,�
- $#"./$�/0�1%,!! !2�,!3�4!5 $/!6#!.,%�700, $8�
�,!�9$,!" 8"/�:!.#$!,. /!,%�7 $*/$.�
�
7..,"+6#!.8�

7;<=1�>,*�/0��,0#.&�=/6*,. ? % .&�@/!#8�
>,*�/0�1$/A#".�� .#�

�
""B� �#,!�=+,$*#!. #$'�=C=7D�

E/6�F %% ,68'�= .&�/0�> %%?$,#'�= .&�>,!,2#$�
;,)$ #��)..6# #$'�977��,!�9$,!" 8"/�7 $*/$.8�- 8.$ ".�G00 "#'�>,!,2#$�
1+ %% *�> %%#$'�=,%.$,!8�- 5 8 /!�/0�7#$/!,). "8'�:!.#$ 6�=+ #0�
:5,$��,.#$/'��9G'�7 $*/$.�- $#"./$�
D#/00�(#)6,&$'��9G'�=+ #0�H#8 % #!"#�,!3��)8., !,? % .&�G00 "#$�
=,.+&�F 3#!#$'��9G'�7". !2�=+ #0�4I.#$!,%�700, $8�G00 "#$�
7)3$#&�1,$J'��9G'�4!5 $/!6#!.,%�700, $8�>,!,2#$�

� =+$ 8�- 1$ 6,'��9G'��#! /$�7 $*/$.�1%,!!#$�
�

KLMNOPQR�SRTUVLWU�XKY�Z[\S]̂ _̀ab\][acSKda]\Scae[[ê ]c]b_\f

97



��

������
	
������

�

��

����	
����

���	���
	����

�����	��
���

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
	

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�


�
�	�
��
�
�

���
��
�



�����

�

�	������
��
��
��

���
������

�
	�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
�	�



��
�

��
�
	�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

��
��

�
��

�	
��
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�
�


��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

���������
�

��
�
�
�
���
�
�

�
�
�
�
�


��
�
�

�
�


�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�����������������

����
�
�
	

�
��
�
��

�
�
�


�
�	�
��
�
�

����
����

����

�
�
�



�
�	����

�

���
��
��


���
�

����� !"����� !"

#$ ��%&!'"#$ ��%&!'"

�	��������������

�	�����	���������

������
�����(

��
	
���������	���

�	������
��
����(

��
��������(

����	
�����	
������	����������

�	��������	�������

���
(�	
������
�����������

�	��������������(

��������	�����������

���	
��������������
�����������

����
���������(

�	
���
������
�����������

��	
����
���
�������
�����������

�������������
����������
�����������

����	
������	�������	�
�)*

������	
���	���������

���������������
�����������

+,-,./


0


+

11 22



3%�%453%�%45

3%�%453%�%45

�
��	�������

����
����
�����

	
��	����

�	������������

��
�������
�

����	���

�	�������
�������������

����	������������������

����	������(

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
	

�
(
��
�
��
�

�
��


�
�


��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�
�


��
�

�
�
�
�


��
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�

6 67�* 67*678�*

�9:;<

22

==

�>?9@9A	�BC

�DEFG;?;H<9I;��9GFDGA��JHK��<;��:JH
LDG�A?;��HI9GDH<�DL��JH��GJHM9<MD�	HA;GHJA9DHJ:��9GFDGA

NOP,QR�STUVOQWXW+WQR�YT.,N

W.�QZ,�SWQW,N�TP�X[0+W.-OU,�O./�UW++X0O,

S\SO-
�9A]̂�D_HA]��<<DM9JA9DH�DL��DI;GHE;HA<

DL��JH��JA;D��D_HA]̀��J:9LDGH9J

aa

aa

Nbcdef�Sghibejkjljef�Ygmdn

�;o9DHJ:��JGp�DG��;MG;JA9DH��G;J

�F;H��FJM;

�_@:9M

�_:A9B�JE9:]��;<9K;HA9J:

�9Ho:;��JE9:]��;<9K;HA9J:

�DEE;GM9J:

	HK_<AG9J:̀��GJH<FDGAJA9DH̀�JHK��A9:9A9;<

�DMJ:��JGp̀��D:L��D_G<;̀��;E;A;G]

�9>;K��<;

�GJH<9A��G9;HA;K��;I;:DFE;HA

Vlbmmdq�+bmq�[nd�Vdr�-dmdrbl�Vlbmn

�_H9M9FJ:��D_HKJG]

�JsDG��DJK

�G;;tJ]

�J9:GDJK

�:JM;�DL��DG<?9F

������AJA9DH

������	
��AJA9DH

�M?DD:

�D<F9AJ:

�9GFDGA��GDF;GA]

�DJK

	HA;GHJ:�@D_HKJG9;<�DL����BK;L9H;K�JG;J<

�F;M9L9M��:JH��G;J

8�B��_HtJ]��GDA;MA9DH�uDH;B�@s;MA��G;;��G;J8�B��_HtJ]��GDA;MA9DH�uDH;B�@s;MA��G;;��G;J

��B�	HH;G��FFGDJM?̂�;FJGA_G;�uDH;��B�	HH;G��FFGDJM?̂�;FJGA_G;�uDH;

)�B�	HH;G��_GH9Ho�uDH;)�B�	HH;G��_GH9Ho�uDH;

v�B��_A;G��FFGDJM?̂�;FJGA_G;�uDH;v�B��_A;G��FFGDJM?̂�;FJGA_G;�uDH;

*�B��9K;:9H;�uDH;<*�B��9K;:9H;�uDH;<


����

Ujllkrbd�Nebejgm

Ordb�Nidwjcjw�Vlbm

.grex�Xyrljmzbhd\0glljmn�0gbq

Nidwjcjw�Vlbm

Xyrljmzbhd�Xbfcrgme

Nidwjcjw�Ordb�Vlbm

�D_GM;<{�

�DMJ:��:JH<{
B��JH��G_HD��;H;GJ:��:JH̀��;M;E@;G��66�
B��D_A?��JH��GJHM9<MD��;H;GJ:��:JH̀�8CC�

|}~�����������}����|������������������|�������������������

98



�

�������	�
	�������������
�����������
�����
��������������

99


	1 ALUC Agenda 092823 - Revised
	AIRPORT LAND USE COMMITTEE (ALUC)
	Revised AGENDA

	0 ALUC Agenda Packet Sept 2023 - rev
	1 ALUC Agenda 092823 - Revised
	AIRPORT LAND USE COMMITTEE (ALUC)
	Revised AGENDA

	0 ALUC Agenda Packet Sept 2023 - rev
	ALUC Agenda Packet - Sept 2023
	3 Minutes - Aug 2023 - draft
	3a Minutes - Aug 2023 - attendance
	4 - SR Crestmoor SB ALUC
	4 A1-A6 Crestmoor SB Attachments
	5 - SR- 501 Industrial SC
	I.         ALUCP Consistency Evaluation

	5 A1-A5 501 Industrial SC
	6 - SR Burlingame Zoning ALUC
	6 A1-A5 Burlngame ZO atts
	7 - SR San Carlos Zoning ALUC
	The San Carlos ALUCP contains two policies regarding overflight compatibility which are generally “buyer awareness” measures focused on informing prospective buyers and/or tenants of property within the vicinity of an airport about the airport’s impac...
	The proposed zoning amendments include both of these policy provisions and therefore are consistent with the Overflight Compatibility policies of the San Carlos ALUCP.

	7 A1 San Carlos Zoning ALUC
	Application-Consistency-Determination_8_21
	Application-Consistency-Determination_Completed.pdf
	Application-Land-Use-Consistency-Determination_Completed.pdf

	Application_Memorandum.pdf
	I. Overview
	The City of San Carlos (City) is proposing amendments to its Zoning Ordinance to bring it into compliance with the County of San Mateo’s Comprehensive Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for the Environs of San Carlos Airport. In 2022, as part...
	In consideration of these, the City has proposed the attached revised Zoning Ordinance amendments (Attachment A) that establishes procedures that ensure compliance with ALUCP standards and requirements, and describes applicable compatibility criteria....
	The Checklist specifically names each of the ALUCP noise policies 1-5 and 7, provides references to the relevant sections, figures, tables, and exhibits within the ALUCP and requires the applicant to indicate if in their evaluation the project is in c...
	The Checklist specifically names each of the ALUCP airspace protection policies 1 to 7 and provides references to the relevant exhibits within the ALUCP. To address allowable heights in relation to protected airspace the checklist requires the applica...
	To address avigation easements the checklist requires the applicant to indicate if in their evaluation the project is in conformance with the Airspace Protection Policy 7 indicated in the 2022 ALUCP Amendment. The GIS layers described above will be he...
	VII. Attachments
	Attachment A: Proposed changes to the San Carlos Zoning Ordinance.
	Attachment B: Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Checklist and Checklist Addenda

	Application-Consistency-Determination_Completed
	Application_Memorandum.pdf
	SPLAN-COPY23082115330.pdf



	ALUCP_ZO Redline v 2023 08 21_rev
	PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY OF SAN CARLOS ZONING ORDINANCE FOR ALUC REVIEW
	VERSION AUGUST 21, 2023
	18.15 GENERAL SITE REGULATIONS
	18.21 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	F.     Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency. Where required, conformance with applicable Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan standards, as described in Section 18.21.150 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency, is required.
	18.21.150 Airspace protection.
	18.21.150 San Carlos Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan Consistency.
	18.28 ZONING CLEARANCE
	Amendments to 18.28.030
	18.28.030 Review and decision. Before the City may issue any business license, building permit, subdivision approval, or lot line adjustment, the Director shall review the application to determine whether the use, building, or change in lot configura...



	8 - SR - ALUC - Millbrae SASP Amendment - Gateway
	SFO ALUCP Consistency Evaluation

	8 A1-A5 MSASP Gateway Atts






